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Newly completed manufacturing buildings of WKK Technology Park at Dongguan, China
B 58 Bz v I S SE G A e B

The Ground Floor of the manufacturing buildings is the The Second Floor of the manufacturing buildings is
place where WKK Distribution Limited produces the the place where WKK Technology Limited expands
machinery equipments its production lines (now is under renovation)

MEZMTAETREEEHARA A AEERISRMZMT WEZ A T IREEB A RN IR TAESH
Z W BIE S )



These OEM products are manufactured by WKK Technology Limited
ja BE JRURE b B EQ R A R 4 Wl L

BlueTooth Headset with In-Ear Heart Rate Monitoring
A HSURE S HE B A 0 Bk S 2 T g

Medical Equipment Electronic Assembly
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Washing Machine Control Board Module
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These products are distributed by WKK Distribution Limited
iE B s dh Fh E P R A A PR O ] A
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Yamaha YS 24
Yamaha YS 24 /N EU 548 v 2885 40 0E R b

Yamaha MR512GFR Reel to Reel Micro Prober
Yamaha MR512GFR % ¥} % 76 I 1%

esi 5335 Series UV Laser Drilling System
esi 5335 Series UV #0684 L #




These products are distributed by WKK Distribution Limited
iE B s dh Fh E P R A A PR O ] A

ViTechnology 3D SPI
3DH B b R

Yamaha YSI-V
2 HEDE Rk R 5

IceSense3™ Cryoabalation System

- A medical device specifically for treating breast fibroadenomas
IceSense3™ & Bl 1H ik & %t
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group’s turnover for the year 2015 was HK$4.9 billion,
reflecting a decrease of approximately 15% compared to 2014.
The Group’s profit attributable to shareholders was HK$47
million as compared to a profit attributable to shareholders of
HK$66.6 million (which included a profit of HK$23.7 million on
the disposal of a property in Singapore) last year.

Trading and Distribution Division (WKK Distribution)

The Group’s Industrial Products Trading and Distribution
Division registered sales of HK$1.6 billion for the year 2015,
reflecting a reduction of approximately 2% as compared to last
year. The Division’s operating profit was HK$51.9 million, an
improvement of HK$13.2 million over last year. The sale of
PCB related products, and the operations in Taiwan, contributed
a major part of the Division’s profit. All of the Division’s major
operations recorded improvements in operating profits with the
exception of the trading operations in the PRC which recorded a

slight drop.

OEM Manufacturing Division (WKK Technology)

The turnover of the Group’s OEM Manufacturing Division
decreased by approximately 21% to HK$3.2 billion in 2015 as
compared to last year. This was mainly due to a cyclical reduction
in the sales volume of some of the OEM products manufactured
by the Division. However, largely as a result of a shift in sales
mix towards higher margin products and cost cutting measures,
the Division’s operating profit was HK$53.4 million, reflecting a

reduction of only approximately 11% compared to last year.

FINANCE

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had committed bank and other
financing facilities totaling HK$3,040 million, of which HK$588
million was drawn down. As of 31 December 2015, the Group’s
consolidated net borrowings amounted to HK$101 million and
its total equity amounted to HK$1,582 million, resulting in a net

gearing ratio of 6%.

Most of the Group’s sales were conducted in the same currencies
as the corresponding purchase transactions. Foreign exchange

contracts were used to hedge exposures where necessary.

IFEHRES

EFEAE]

AR BE ) s T — AR 2 S R s W U
I 0 B TR — T AR D #115% o A 4 1 8k A5
JIE I A Yok RIS DY T B AT o i 25 AR HY
B AT B RO A RS S TS E S T #E
(7 TP B FE B O A B o 3 W 2 2 i R s HE
“F=E=EHt+#D -

S o Boor 8500 (BB RS

LR 2 TERE bR o Sy B & — T
RGBT T NE T BEER DL
2% o w4 P R R B T A Lt
L BMAFEHREBR -T=9_1#x-
B R T B AR B E it 2 B R I B SRS B %
Al P 2 i R A e T B R o %A T A
EH BN ERG R WP R S ¥
B 2 KEE i M) ) BR AT RSB 2K o

DS A B R (R R A )

ALEE RSN - B
B EFW A8 =+ 2 Fr, 38
B P % 0 1 Rk Oy DR B
WM BRI B - SR > B IR B A A )
SRy I 2 B B AT A A 2 K R
WMz SR A BB LT =38
W AR D £911% -

W%
WZEFE—RHETH=ZT—H > AEHE
O ISR A7 Mo o fth B B R B A 3L I
=TT O R
AR T NE TG o ALK —F—TF T
A=t —HZEBERREA B — T —
B s R A+ AT ZE
G > HIFEAAEILEF6% -

A R A 8 B LA B R S 5 B 2 &
W B HEAT I 2 RT SL A E B & DUTE 75 2 IR
S b R o



CAPITAL STRUCTURE
There have been no material changes in the capital structure of the

Group since 31 December 2014.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As of 31 December 2015, the Group had a total of 5,970
employees, of whom 277 were based in Hong Kong, 5,377 in the
PRC and 316 overseas. The remuneration packages of the Group’s
employees are mainly based on their performance and experience,
taking into account current industry practices. Provident fund
scheme, medical allowances, and in-house and external training
programs are available to employees. Shares options and
discretionary bonuses are provided to employees according to the
performance of the individual and the Group. The remuneration
policy and packages of the Group’s employees are regularly

reviewed.

ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT

The Group is committed to contributing in different areas of
sustainability, including protecting the environment. The Group
has established a green council to lead and organize various

environmental protection activities and programs.

The Group has set up various systems, including a waste water
treatment plant, solar panels for warming water supplies for
workers, LED and solar lighting, computerized documentation
for reducing paper consumption, selective fluxing and soldering,
an [SO14001 Certification Environmental Management System,
an [ECQ QCO080000 Hazardous Substances Process Management
System, an ISO14064-1 Specification with Guidance at the
Organization Level for Quantification and Reporting of
Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Removals and an ISO50001
Energy Management System for monitoring and improving
greenhouse gas emissions and energy consumption. The Group
applies eco-design and eco-packaging, and also follows green
procurement policies, as well as clean and green manufacturing
along the supply chain throughout the whole product life cycle in
order to produce green products with high and consistent quality.
The Group has been educating its employees, the main internal
stakeholders, to be environmentally friendly, so as to set a good

example to external stakeholders.

The Group has been recognized by Government, Industry,
Customers and Suppliers in relation to its environmental

achievements.
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Group is involved in the community by helping and
developing people in need. The Group’s staff have formed
a volunteer team who contribute their free time to serve the
community by visiting the elderly centres to organize activities.
The Group has donated to various charities, and also gives
scholarships to eligible students who otherwise cannot afford to

further their studies at university.

The Group has been awarded the “10 Years Plus Caring
Company” logo by the Hong Kong Council of Social Service.

We have conducted numerous tours for students of secondary
schools and universities to visit our PRC factory to enrich their

knowledge of green production facilities.

LEGAL AND REGULATORY COMPLIANCE
The Group has complied with all relevant laws and regulations

that have a significant impact on the operations of the Group.

PROSPECTS
In light of the sluggish market environment, it is expected that the
demand for the industrial products distributed by the Group will

continue to be soft in the foreseeable future.

Given the prevailing economic conditions, the operating
environment for the Group’s OEM Manufacturing Division is
expected to be difficult. The Directors therefore expect that the
orders for the OEM Manufacturing Division for the coming year

will be affected.

In order to address current market conditions, both Divisions
are exploring cost cutting options. The OEM Manufacturing
Division is also implementing further automation in its production

processes to improve efficiencies and reduce production costs.

On behalf of the Board, I wish to thank all employees for their
continued effort, support and loyalty to the Group.

By Order of the Board

Senta Wong

Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2016
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

AFEMBEE

For the year ended 31 December
BETH=+—HILEE

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
i o abTH e can abTH T o T 0 T oo
RESULTS ¥ %
Turnover ‘& 2E %0 5,237,518 5,249,294 5,765,755 5,778,057 4,921,570
Profit attributable to shareholders
JSE BRI A1 343 75,456 42,301 45,375 66,639 47,037
At 31 December
RHZA=Z+—B&HE
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
e o abTH e can abTH T o T 0 T oo
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES & & J £ {&
Total assets & & 40 % 3,884,297 3,255,625 3,407,231 3,157,214 2,975,084
Total liabilities £ 1 44 %8 (2,452,003)  (1,766,244)  (1,877,894)  (1,589,212)  (1,393,408)
Non-controlling interest JF 4% il 4 # £ (75,966) (97,801) (96,624) (90,261) (90,678)
Total shareholders’ funds attributable to
owners of the Company
RATIREGFRA H 2 BORE 4 A8 1,356,328 1,391,580 1,432,713 1,477,741 1,490,998




BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Wong, Senta, aged 73, began his career in the electronics industry
in 1964. Mr. Wong is a founder of the Group in 1975 and it has been
de-merged from Wong’s International (Holdings) Limited (the “WIH
Group”) in 1989. He has been a director and Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company since March 1990 and a director in
a number of subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Wong has stepped down
from his position as the Chief Executive Officer of the Company
with effect from 1 March 2015. He is currently an independent
non-executive Director, Chairman of each of the Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee, and member of the Audit
Committee of Hang Fat Ginseng Holdings Company Limited (stock
code: 911), a company whose issued shares are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). Mr. Wong is the father of Mr. Wong, Vinci and the
father-in-law of Mr. Chang Jui Shum, Victor.

Tsui Ying-Chun, Edward, aged 69, obtained a Bachelor of Arts
degree from the University of Hong Kong and joined the WIH Group
in 1982 as general manager in charge of corporate administration. In
1985, Mr. Tsui became the general manager and, in 1987, a director
of Wong’s Kong King Holdings Limited. Mr. Tsui had extensive
experience in broadcasting, trading and manufacturing before joining
the WIH Group. He has been a director of the Company since
March 1990 and a director in a number of subsidiaries of the Group.
Mr. Tsui has been appointed as the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company with effect from 1 March 2015.

Ho Shu-Chan, Byron, aged 71, graduated from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor of Commerce degree. Mr.
Ho had more than 18 years of extensive working experience with
the Inchcape group of companies as financial controller and general
manager prior to joining the WIH Group in January 1989. He is the
Chairman of Taiwan Kong King Co., Limited (“TKK”), a company
listed in Taiwan. He has been a director of the Company since March
1990 and a director in a number of subsidiaries of the Group.

Kwong Man-Hang, Bengie, J.P. (Aust.), aged 68, is an Executive
Program Graduate of the Graduate School of Business, Stanford
University, also a graduate of the Senior Executive Program on
Negotiation (PON) at Harvard Law School, Harvard University. He
earned his Doctorate in Business Administration at the University
of Liverpool Management School UK. He was formerly the chief
executive of Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency (Hong Kong
Government subvented organization) — an independent third
party ISO 9000/14000 Quality and Environmental Management
System Certification Body. He has many years senior management
experience and has an impressive track record in the field of
computer and electronics industry with multi-national organizations.
Mr. Kwong has fellowships in various professional institutions, and
has been appointed as vice president of the Institution of British
Engineers — England, and fellow of the Institute of Directors (Royal
Charter) U.K. He has been a director of the Company since February
1996, a director of WKK Japan Limited since February 1997, a chief
executive officer of WKK America (Holdings) Inc. since June 2001
and a director in a number of subsidiaries of the Group.
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Hamed Hassan El-Abd, aged 68, joined the Group in 1992. He
is a director and the president of WKK Distribution Limited.
Prior to joining the Group, he was president of Amistar AG, a
manufacturer of automated robotics used in electronics assembly
in particular the area of Surface Mount Technology. In 1988, he
founded his own consulting company and worked with Japanese,
U.S. and European companies in the electronics area. Mr. El-
Abd holds a BA degree in Journalism and an MA in International
Affairs. He has been a director of the Company since May 2001

and a director in a number of subsidiaries of the Group.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Leung Kam Fong, aged 74, obtained a Bachelor of Science
degree and a post-graduate Certificate in Education from the
University of Hong Kong. Mr. Leung began his career in
technical education and training in 1965 at the Hong Kong
Technical College and Hong Kong Polytechnic. He joined the
Vocational Training Council in 1982, founded the Chai Wan
Technical Institute in 1985, upgraded it to Hong Kong Technical
College (Chai Wan) in 1992 and subsequently became Deputy
Executive Director in 1993. In 1995, he was appointed as the
Chief Executive of Tung Wah Group of Hospitals until 2006. In
these 11 years, Tung Wah experienced tremendous expansion,
and he pioneered the development of a series of modern Chinese
Medicine Specialist Clinics. He was awarded honorary doctorate
degrees from Middlesex University, U. K. and Hunan University
of Traditional Chinese Medicine, PRC and holds visiting
professorship at Hunan and Chengdu University of Traditional
Chinese Medicine, PRC. He had been appointed Vice-Secretary
General of the World Federation of Chinese Medicine Societies,
PRC from 2006 to 2010. He was elected President of the
International Hua-Xia Medicine Society. Mr. Leung joined the
Group in 2007 as the executive director and the chief executive
of 3 Kings Holding Limited (“3 Kings Holding”), a subsidiary
of the Company to conduct business in health care and Chinese
medicine. Mr. Leung has also been appointed as the director of 3
Kings Advertising Company Limited (“3 Kings Advertising”), a
subsidiary of the Company since 2009. Mr. Leung resigned from
all the positions of 3 Kings Holding and 3 Kings Advertising
in January 2013. Mr. Leung was appointed as a director of the
Modernized Chinese Medicine International Association in 2013.
He has been a Non-Executive Director of the Company since
January 2013.
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Hsu Hung Chieh, alias, Andrew Sheu, aged 69, joined the
Group in 1981, is the director of TKK, a company listed in
Taiwan. He has over 35 years of experience in the high technology
equipment trading and manufacturing industry. He served in TKK
as management, specialized in operating and marketing, for over
30 years, and held the position of TKK Chairman from 2012 to
2015. Mr. Hsu holds a bachelor degree in Electrical Engineering
from Tatung University in Taiwan. He has been a director of the
Company since January 2009.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ho, John, aged 70, is a practising solicitor in Hong Kong. He
obtained a Bachelor of Laws degree from the University of
London. In 1972, he qualified as a solicitor and joined a major
firm of solicitors. Mr. Ho is a partner of John Ho & Tsui. Mr. Ho
was appointed as an independent non-executive director of Wa
Ha Realty Company Limited in 1994 and re-designated as a non-
executive director in 2004; and also CEO and executive director
of China Western Investments PLC, a previously London listed
company. He has been a director of the Company since March
1990.

Tse Wan-Chung, Philip, aged 71, retired from DDB Advertising
Agency Operations in 1997 and remained a member of the
Company’s Worldwide Board until 2000. Mr. Tse had spent over
34 years in the advertising industry. Besides his involvement in
advertising, Mr. Tse is one of the founders of the Hong Kong
Artists’ Guild (“Guild”) in which he has been serving as the
Chairman of the Executive Committee since 1986. Mr. Tse was
appointed as the Chairman of Guild since 1996. He was also
appointed by the Hong Kong Government as a council member
of the Hong Kong Academy of Performing Arts in 1991. Mr Tse
has served as a member of the Young Presidents’ Organization
since 1976 and is currently a member of the World Presidents’
Organization. In recent years, Mr. Tse focuses on marketing
management and art and culture related business. He founded
BaoQu Tang Gallery of Art (“BQT”) in 2004. BQT has become a
well known brand in the art scene in Hong Kong and China. He
has been a Director of the Company since March 1990.
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Gene Howard Weiner, aged 79, is president of Weiner
International Associates, a business and technical consultancy
serving the specialty chemical and electronics industries. He
was formerly a member of the Advisory Board of eSurface
Technologies (DBA of EarthOne Circuit Technologies
Corporation). The clients of Weiner International Associates
have included several Fortune 100 companies. He was a founding
partner of Quantum Solar Group, Inc., a market research
organization in the Photovoltaic solar industry as well as a
founding member of the SMTA (Surface Mount Technology
Association). His executive experience includes that of Director
and President of New England Laminates Co. Inc. (subsidiary of
Park Electrochemical), a leading supplier of copper clad laminates
to the electronics industry; vice president of sales and marketing
of Dynachem Corporation (now part of Dow Chemical), one of the
world’s leading suppliers of photopolymers specialty chemicals to
the electronics industry; and vice president of marketing of Oxy
Metal Finishing, a major specialty chemical firm. Mr. Weiner was
formerly on the Board of Advisors of NCAB USA, Inc. (formerly
known as P. D. Circuits, Inc.), a U.S. company providing CAM,
design for manufacture, tests and other shared infrastructure
services to the printed circuit assembly industry. He is a member
of the Board of Trustees of the Plymouth Philharmonic Orchestra,
Southeast Massachusett’s professional symphony orchestra. Now
in its 100" season, “The Phil” has performed in venues from
Boston to Cape Cod. Mr. Weiner is also Chairman of the Advisory
Board of Directors of Shanghai PhiChem Material Co., Ltd., a
public specialty chemical company listed on the Shenzhen stock
exchange. PhiChem is China’s largest provider of UV curable
coatings for fiber optic cable, and the 2" largest in the world.
He is a member of the Advisory Board of the MBA program of
the Malcolm Baldridge School of Business at Post University,
founded over 120 years ago as a business school. Post is ranked
in the top 20 among online education providers according to the
Online Education Data Base (OEDb), a U.S. national resource
for online degree programs. Mr. Weiner has been inducted into
the IPC Raymond Pritchard Hall of Fame, the IPC’s and the
industry’s highest award and recognition. In January 2014, he was
named a member of the IPC’s Ambassadors Council. He has been
a director of the Company since April 1992.

Yip Wai Chun, aged 58, obtained the degrees of Bachelor of
Medicine and Bachelor of Surgery from the University of Hong
Kong in 1981. Dr. Yip began his career as a surgeon in Queen
Mary Hospital. He was awarded the fellowships of the Royal
Colleges of Surgeons of Edinburgh and Glasgow in 1986 and that
of Australia in 1988. He took up the surgeon’s appointment in
Kwong Wah Hospital in 1986 and was promoted to the post of
consultant surgeon in 1991. Dr. Yip was made Chief of Service of
Department of Surgery of Kwong Wah Hospital with the Hospital
Authority in 1992. Dr. Yip is a specialist in Urology and has been
in private practice since 2012.

Dr. Yip was awardee of Hong Kong Ten Outstanding Young
Persons in 1996. In 2006, he received the Outstanding Staff
Award of Hospital Authority. Dr. Yip was Vice-President of the
College of Surgeons of Hong Kong from 2004 till 2010. Presently,
he is honorary associate professor, Medicine, of University of
Hong Kong and Chinese University of Hong Kong. Dr. Yip is also
honorary consultant and executive director of medical service of
Tung Wah Group of Hospitals.
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Over the years, Dr Yip has had substantial contributions to
the development of medical services in Hong Kong. Dr. Yip
coordinated the provision of liver transplant service in Hong Kong
in 2001. He is a renowned leader in the field of Men Health and
is also a pioneer for delivery of integrated Western and Chinese
medicine service in Hong Kong.

Dr. Yip was the member of the Election Committee of the
Legislative Council of Hong Kong SAR, China in 2002, 2007 and
2012. He was also the member of the Election Committee for the
10th, 11th, 12th National Peoples’ Representative Committee,
Hong Kong SAR, China.

He has been an Independent Non-Executive Director, member of
the Audit Committee and member of the Remuneration Committee
of the Company since January 2014.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

WONG’S KONG KING HOLDINGS LIMITED

Chung Yiu Ming, Alvin, aged 68, joined the Group in 2002.
Mr. Chung is the general manager of Human Resources &
Administration Department of the Group. He has more than 30
years extensive HR&A experience in the industry. Prior to joining
the Group, he brought with him well proven record in various
regional multi-national organisations such as Ampex, Digital
Equipment, Data General and National Semiconductor, etc. Mr.
Chung holds a Graduate Diploma in Personnel Management from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University (formerly named as HK
Technical College). He is the visiting lecturer of the Hong Kong
Management Association, the Hong Kong Productivity Council and
Shengchun University, etc. for over the past 10 years. Mr. Chung
has been served as the Academic Chairman of the Hong Kong
People Management Association (formerly named as Hong Kong
Industrial Relations Association).

Cheng Ying, aged 44, joined the Group in 2010. She is now the
company secretary of the Group. She graduated from the Lingnan
University with a Honours Diploma in Company Secretaryship and
Administration. She is an associate member of both of the Hong
Kong Institute of Company Secretaries and the Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators. Prior to joining the Group, she has
about 15 years of experience in company secretarial field.

WKK TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

Wong Kwok-Wai, Jacky, aged 58, joined the Group in 1980. He is
the executive director of WKK Technology Limited. Mr. Wong had
been responsible for the Group’s OEM production operation and
the marketing of the Group’s semiconductors products in the early
years and is currently in charge of marketing the Group’s OEM
services. He holds a Higher Diploma in Industrial Engineering. He
has been a director of WKK America (Holdings) Inc. since June
2001.
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Wong Lup-Keung, Ben, aged 60, joined the Group in 1996. He is
the Director and General Manager of Sales & Project Management
Department of WKK Technology Limited. He has extensive
industrial experience in various fields namely, R&D engineering,
procurement, operations and sales & marketing areas etc. Mr. Wong
holds a Bachelor degree in Science (Electronics Engineering) from
the Chinese University of Hong Kong.

Tang Kang, aged 59, joined the Group in April 1990. He is the
General Manager of Manufacturing Operations in PRC Plant
of WKK Technology Limited. Mr. Tang has over 20 years’
manufacturing experience in both computer and consumer
electronics industries. He holds a Bachelor degree in Radio
and Telecom Technology from the South China University of
Technology.

Wong Kong-Ting, David, aged 56, joined the Group in 1997.
Mr. Wong is the General Manager of Material Management
Department of WKK Technology Limited. He has over 30 years’
manufacturing experience in scheduling and movement information
from operation’s Planning and Material Control (PMC) system,
Procurement Management, etc. Mr. Wong holds Bachelor of
Science in Computer Information System and EMBA (Executive
Master in Business Administration) from the University of Hull
U.K.

DONGGUAN NISSIN PLASTIC PRODUCTS CO., LTD.
Chan Wing Wah, Jonathan, aged 63, joined the Group in
2001 and was appointed as the assistant general manager of
manufacturing (WKK Technology Ltd.). In 2005, Mr. Chan left the
Group and furthered his study. He obtained a Master of Science
degree in Strategic Human Resource Management from Hong Kong
Baptist University. He also holds a Master degree in Engineering
Management from University of Technology, Sydney, Australia.
He rejoined the Group in 2008 and was promoted to managing
director of Dongguan Nissin Plastic Products Co., Ltd since 2009.
He has more than 20 years experience in electronics industries.
Prior to joining the Group, he was the deputy managing director in
a plastic fabrication shop, the China operations director of a trading
company and the assistant general manager of an OEM company.

WKK DISTRIBUTION LIMITED

Chang Jui Shum, Victor, aged 41, joined the Group in 2004. He
is now the Director and general manager of WKK Distribution
Limited. He is responsible for formulating the sales and marketing
strategy, and overseeing the development of new business. Mr.
Chang holds a Bachelor degree in Commerce (Accounting &
Finance) from the Monash University of Melbourne, and MBA
from City University of Hong Kong. Mr. Chang is the son-in-law of
Mr. Wong, Senta and the brother-in-law of Mr. Wong, Vinci.
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Fullwood, Lionel, aged 75, joined the Group in 1997. He is a
technical director and manages the Technical Services for the PCB
arena company wide. Prior to joining the Group, he spent 34 years
in the electronics industry, specializing in PCB manufacturing.
He has designed, selected equipment, and been responsible for the
design, building and management of seven PCB manufacturing
facilities in Asia and US. At the present time, he is active in
the Institute of Printed Circuits. He received the Institute’s
Distinguished Committee award in October of 2000, 2002 and
2007, as well as the IPC President’s Award for 2003. At the 2005
IPC EXPO Conference, Mr. Fullwood was appointed General Chair
of the IPC 110 set of committees. Mr. Fullwood holds a B.Sc in
Chemistry and Maths., and an M.A. in Molecular Biology and
Polymer Chemistry. He has authored or co-authored 41 technical
papers and publications.

In February of 2013, Mr. Fullwood was awarded the 2013 Raymond
Pritchard award of the IPC, and inducted into the IPC Hall of Fame.
This is the highest award the IPC presents, with only 33 recipients
worldwide since 1960.

Mr. Fullwood retired from the Group on 1 March 2016.

To Wan-Sang, Stephen, aged 60, joined the Group in 1979. He
is currently the Head of South East Asia operation and general
manager for New Product Development. He was the general
manager for WKK Source Electronics (HK) Limited, a joint-venture
with Source Electronics Asia Limited in U.S., mainly, a leader
in Integrated Circuit Programming Service. Mr. To has assumed
various positions along the growth of the group. He was the
engineering manager of World Storage Technology, a former
manufacturing unit of the group manufacturing floppy disk drives.
He was also the service manager for China, sales manager for
electronic equipment in Hong Kong, director and general manager
for WKK (Thailand) Limited, and largely being responsible for
marketing of electronic equipment in various territories. Mr. To was
also the general manager for Special Products Group. Mr. To holds
an MBA degree from UK, and a Higher Diploma in Electronic
Engineering.

WKK ELECTRONIC EQUIPMENT LIMITED

Lee Wai-Kong, Johnson, aged 57, joined the Group in 1989. He
is the director and general manager of WKK Electronic Equipment
Limited and is responsible for marketing the Group’s electronic
products in Hong Kong and the PRC. Mr. Lee holds a Bachelor
degree in Science (Electronics Engineering) from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong.
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WKK PCB TRADING LIMITED

Lui Kwok-Chak, Randy, aged 55, joined the Group in 1985.
He is a director and the general manager of WKK PCB Trading
Limited and is responsible for marketing the Group’s PCB
products in Hong Kong and the PRC. Mr. Lui holds a Bachelor of
Science degree in Chemical Engineering from National Taiwan
University. He worked in the field of PCB manufacturing before
he joined the Group.

WKK ENGINEERING SERVICE LIMITED

Wong Man-Sing, Joe, aged 65, joined the Group in 1976. He is
a director and the general manager of WKK Engineering Service
Limited. He holds electronic diploma and has more than 30 years
of experience in the managing and servicing of equipment used in
the electronics industry. Mr. Wong retired from the Group on 1
April 2016.

CHINA BUSINESS

Yeung Chuen-Hau, aged 68, joined the Group in 1984. He is
the director and general manager of WKK China Limited and is
responsible for marketing the Group’s products and services in the
PRC.

Ng Ka Kui, Jimmy, aged 53, joined the Group in 1983. He is
the General Manager of WKK Beijing office. Mr. Ng had been
responsible for the Group’s electronics assembly, printed circuit
board and semiconductors business for North China market. He

holds a Certificate in Electrical Engineering.

Yu Chun Yip, Tony, aged 48, joined the Group in 1994. He
is the General Manager of WKK Trading (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
and Suzhou Branch. Mr. Yu is responsible for the marketing ,
sales and service of the SMT product in East China . He holds a
Diploma in Marketing.

Lee Wai-Man, Raymond, aged 53, join the Group in 1982. He
is the General Manager of WKK EMS Equipment (Shenzhen)
Limited. Mr. Lee previously worked in the engineering
department, sales & marketing for electronic assembly field, and
is currently in charge of Group’s distribution business in South
China.
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Lin Fu Chan, Frank, aged 61, Mr. Lin graduated from the
Jiangxi University of Science and Technology in 1975. Before
joining the Group in 1991, he had been a civil servant of the
Government of the PRC for 8 years with over 10 years mechanical
product design and management experience. He was granted a
National Technology Improvement Award by the Government
of the PRC in 1983. He was the General Manager of WKK EMS
Equipment (Chengdu) Ltd, WKK EMS Equipment (Chongqing)
Ltd. and WKK Electronic Equipment (Xi’an) Ltd. Effective
from November 2014, Mr. Lin is the General Manager of WKK
Electronic Equipment (Jiangxi) Ltd.. Mr. Lin is the Special
Assistant to the Group Chairman. He is also a Director and
Chairman of Hong Kong Jiangxi Clansmen Association Ltd.

Lau Wai Yuen, Miles, aged 49, joined the Group in 1989
and was responsible for the sales and marketing of electronics
equipment and materials in Hong Kong and South China. Mr. Lau
was promoted to the General Manager of WKK EMS Equipment
(Chengdu) Ltd, WKK EMS Equipment (Chongqing) Ltd. and
WKK Electronic Equipment (Xi’an) Ltd. in November 2014.

WKK DISTRIBUTION (SINGAPORE) PTE LTD.

Leung Man Hoy, aged 66, joined the Group in 1981. He is the
Director and General Manager of WKK Distribution (Singapore)
Pte Ltd. He is taking care of the operation management of South
East Asia business. He holds electronic certificate and has over
30 years experience in electronics field. Prior to he transferred
to Singapore, he was the regional manager of WKK Engineering
Service Limited and Director and General Manager for WKK
Thailand Limited.

TAIWAN WKK DISTRIBUTION CO. LIMITED

Liu Chien Wei, alias, Martin Leou, aged 52, joined Taiwan
Kong King Co., Limited in 1987. He is now the general manager
and Director of Taiwan WKK Distribution Co, Limited and is
responsible for overseeing the day-to-day operations of Taiwan
WKK Distribution business. He has over 27 years experience
in service and customer management. Mr. Liu has also been
appointed as the General Manager of PCB division of WKK China
Shanghai office in October 2001 and is responsible for PCB,
Optoelectronics and Semiconductor business in east China area.
Mr. Liu holds a Bachelor degree in Electrical Engineering from
the Chien Xin Technology College (Formerly known as Qing Yun
University).

DONGGUAN WKK MACHINERY CO. LTD

Fok Kam Chung, Johnson, aged 53, joined the Group in 1987.
Mr. Fok is the Director and General Manager of Dongguan WKK
Machinery Company Limited. He had been the Assistant General
Manager of WKK Engineering Service Limited and the General
Manager of WKK (Shanghai) Engineering Service Co., Ltd.. Mr.
Fok Holds MEM (Master degree in Engineering Management)
from University of Technology, Sydney.
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WKK TRAVEL LIMITED

Ho Yim Wai Hing, Helen, aged 57, joined the Group in 1991.
She is the general manager of WKK Travel Limited. Mrs. Ho has
over 18 years experience in administration. She holds a Diploma

in Business Management.

TAIWAN KONG KING CO., LIMITED

Liao Hung-Ying, Smale, aged 52, joined the Group in 1990. He
is the director and president of TKK. Mr. Liao holds a Bachelor
of Electronic degree in Electronic Engineering of St. John’s &
St. Mary’s Institute of Technology. He also obtained a Certificate
in Executives Program in Graduated School of Business
Administration of National Chengchi University. Mr. Liao was a
supervisor for Taiwan Printed Circuit Association from 2002 to
2009 and has become the Executive Supervisor since 2010.

WKK AMERICA (HOLDINGS) INC.

Bacon Bruce, aged 57, joined the WIH Group in 1986 and
transferred to the WKK Group in 1989. He is the President of
WKK America (Holdings) Inc. Mr. Bacon is responsible for the
Sales and Marketing activities of WKK Technology Limited in
North America. He has over 30 years experience in the electronics
and computer industry. Prior to joining the Group in 1986, Mr.
Bacon managed several Customer Service and Quality Assurance
operations for U.S. based companies involved in the computer
industry.

WKK JAPAN LIMITED

Masato Watanabe, age 69, joined the Group in 1994. He is
appointed as Representative Director and the President of WKK
Japan Limited on 1 April 2009. Prior to taking this position, he
was a Director/Vice President of Kysho America Corporation
in charge of trading, sales and corporate administration. He is a
Bachelor of Arts degree holder from Waseda University, Tokyo,

Japan.

3 KINGS HOLDING LIMITED

Wong Vinci, aged 45, is the director and general manager of 3
Kings Holding Limited (“3 Kings”). He has been appointed as
a director of 3 Kings on 1 December 2010. He graduated from
the University of British Columbia with a Bachelor Commerce
(marketing major) degree. He is a media personality well-known
to Hong Kong and mainland China TV viewers as a quality
presenter with accuracy. He has extensive net-working experience
with the local media and therefore enhances the advertising and
sales promotion of company’s product. Mr. Wong is the son of
Mr. Wong, Senta and the brother-in-law of Mr. Chang Jui Shum,
Victor.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND SEGMENTAL
INFORMATION

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are trading and
distribution of chemicals, materials and equipment used in the
manufacture of printed circuit boards and electronic products and
the manufacture of electrical and electronic products for OEM
customers.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by operating
segments is set out in Note 6 to the financial statements.

RESULTS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015 are
set out in the consolidated income statement on page 52.

DIVIDENDS
The Board of Directors do not recommend the payment of an
interim divided for the six months ended 30 June 2015.

The Board of Directors recommends a final dividend of HK$0.03
per share (2014: HK$0.025 per share) be paid in respect of the
year ended 31 December 2015. The proposed final dividend
will be payable on or about Monday, 25 July 2016, subject to
approval at the Annual General Meeting, to shareholders whose
names appear on the Register of Members of the Company on
Wednesday, 6 July 2016.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in the Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity and Note 36 to the financial
statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in Note 16 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE ISSUED IN THE
YEAR

During the year ended 31 December 2015, 12,566,000 ordinary
shares of the Company were issued for a total consideration of
HK$7,040,000 on the exercise of share options granted under the
Company’s Share Option Scheme.

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital are set
out in Note 26 to the financial statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

No equity-linked agreement which may result in the Company
issuing shares was entered into by the Company during the year or
subsisted at the end of the year, save for the share option scheme
of the Company which has been expired on 29 May 2015 as
disclosed on pages 29 to 30. There is no option to subscribe for
shares remained outstanding at the end of the year.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to the
shareholders, as calculated under the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda and the Bye-laws of the Company, as at the
balance sheet date, amounted to HK$228,745,000 (2014:
HK$242,413,000). In addition, the Company’s capital redemption
reserve and share premium may be distributed in the form of
fully-paid bonus shares.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES
Details of the Group’s retirement benefits schemes are set out in
Note 31 to the financial statements.

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 11 to 12.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s securities during the year.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable donations amounting
to approximately HK$2,030,000.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

45% of turnover and 25% of purchases during the year were
attributable to the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers
respectively. 15% of turnover and 7% of purchases during the year
were attributable to the Group’s largest customer and supplier
respectively. None of the Directors, their associates or any
shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) has any interest in
the Group’s five largest customers or five largest suppliers.
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DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report are:

Executive Directors

Senta Wong (Chairman)

Edward Ying-Chun Tsui (Group President and Chief Executive Officer)
Byron Shu-Chan Ho (Chief Financial Officer)

Bengie Man-Hang Kwong

Hamed Hassan El-Abd

Non-Executive Directors
Leung Kam Fong
Hsu Hung-Chieh

Independent Non-Executive Directors
John Ho

Philip Wan-Chung Tse

Gene Howard Weiner

Yip Wai Chun

In accordance with Bye-laws 103 to 105 of the Company’s Bye-
laws, Mr. Edward Ying-Chun Tsui, Mr. Leung Kam Fong and Mr.
Gene Howard Weiner shall retire by rotation and, being eligible,
offer themselves for election.

The term of office for each Independent Non-Executive Director
is the period up to his retirement by rotation in accordance with

the Company’s Bye-laws.

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-
Executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rules 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”). The Company considers all of the Independent

Non-Executive Directors to be independent.
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UPDATE ON DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION PURSUANT
TO RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING RULES
Mr. Ho Shu-Chan, Byron was appointed as the Chairman of TKK,

a company listed in Taiwan with effect from 1 January 2016.

Mr. Hsu Hung-Chieh resigned as the Chairman of TKK, a
company listed in Taiwan with effect from 1 January 2016, but

remains as a Director of TKK.

Mr. Leung Kam Fong resigned as the President of the International
Hua-Xia Medicine Society with effect from 15 December 2015.

Mr. Gene Howard Weiner was appointed as the Chairman of the
Advisory Board of Directors of Shanghai PhiChem Material Co.,
Ltd., a company whose issued shares are listed on the Shenzhen
stock exchange with effect from 22 July 2015. He resigned as
a member of the Advisory Board of eSurface Technologies on
31 July 2015. He was appointed as a member of the Board of
Trustees of the Plymouth Philharmonic Orchestra with effect from
18 November 2015.

CONTINUING CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

Details of the material related party transactions undertaken by
the Group in its normal course of business are set out in Note 35
to the consolidated financial statements. Some of the related party
transactions as set out in Note 35(a) to the consolidated financial
statements also constitute continuing connected transactions under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

These continuing connected transactions are exempted from
the reporting, annual review, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A.33 of the
Listing Rules. Save as disclosed, there is no other related party
transaction which constitutes a connected/continuing connected
transaction and is subject to the disclosure requirements under the

Listing Rules.
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INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

As at 31 December 2015, the interests or short positions of the
Directors of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFO”) as recorded in the register required to be
kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies, were as
follows:

(I) The Company
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Total

Interests

(including

underlying

Total shares)
Interests as % of

as % the issued

of the issued  Underlying  share capital
share capital ~ Shares (share s A

Personal Family ~ Corporate Other Total i 5 45 options) (L4545 Bk

Name Interests Interests Interests Interests Interests BT AWRR  WICET

4 0\ HE 55 FIEHE 4 AR HAl i £ Baas BATAK (B  RARRK

% %

Senta Wong 4,000,000 1,572,000 122,012,723 207,800,000 335,384,123 44.59 - 44.59
T (Note 1) (Note 2)

(H#1) (f##2)

Edward Ying-Chun Tsui 1,571,920 - - - 1,571,920 1.01 - 1.01
Byron Shu-Chan Ho 3,470,000 360,000 - - 3,830,000 051 - 051
%
Bengie Man-Hang Kwong 5,400,000 - - - 5,400,000 0.72 - 0.72
Wi
Hamed Hassan El-Abd 3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000 0.40 - 0.40
Leung Kam Fong - - - 180,000 180,000 0.02 - 0.02
P (Note 3)

(H##3)
Hsu Hung-Chich 3,064,000 - - - 3,064,000 041 - 041
i
Gene Howard Weiner 450,000 - - - 450,000 0.06 - 0.06




(I) The Company’s associated corporation — Taiwan Kong

(D) A2y W Z HH WG 34 T — 5 968 9 o e A A PR

King Co., Ltd. 4\ H]
Total
Interests
(including
underlying
Total shares)
Interests as % of
as % the issued
of the issued  Underlying  share capital
share capital ~ Shares (share HE %
Personal Family ~ Corporate Other Total HasR options) (£ 4547 Bt
Name Interests Interests Interests Interests Interests e ARRR W CET
4 A\ HE 45 FIERE G ik Ffb i EHA%E RAAAML (BIHE)  BARAL
% %
Hsu Hung-Chich 178,615 4716 - - 183331 051 - 051
FvRY
Notes: ik
1. 122,012,723 shares were registered in the name of Wonder Luck 1. 122,012,723 B /3 PAWonder Luck

International Limited, which was wholly owned by Senta Wong
(BVI) Limited. The entire issued share capital of which was
50.25% owned by Mr. Senta Wong and 49.75% owned by his wife,
Ms. Wong Wu Lai Ming. The references to 122,012,723 shares
deemed to be interested by Mr. Senta Wong (as disclosed herein)
and Senta Wong (BVI) Limited (as disclosed in the section headed
“Interests of substantial sharecholders”) relate to the same block of
shares.

2. 207,800,000 shares were registered in the name of Rewarding
Limited, which was wholly owned by Greatfamily Inc. (which was
in turn wholly owned by Greatguy Inc.) for a discretionary trust,
of which Mr. Senta Wong was regarded as the founder (by virtue
of the SFO). The references to 207,800,000 shares deemed to be
interested by Mr. Senta Wong (as disclosed herein), Greatfamily
Inc. and Greatguy Inc. (as disclosed in the section headed “Interests
of substantial shareholders”) relate to the same block of shares.

3. These 180,000 shares were jointly held by Mr. Leung Kam Fong
and his spouse.

Certain Directors held qualifying shares in certain subsidiaries of
the Group on trust for the Company or other subsidiaries of the
Group.

Save as disclosed herein, as at 31 December 2015, none of the
Directors of the Company or his associates had any interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s Share Option Scheme (the “Scheme”) came into

effect on 30 May 2005. The Scheme has been expired at the close

of business on 29 May 2015. No further options would be granted

under the Scheme but all other provisions of the Scheme shall

remain in force and all options granted prior to such termination

shall continue to be valid and exercisable in accordance with the

provisions of the Scheme.

A summary of the Scheme disclosed in accordance with the

Listing Rules is as follows:

ey

(2)

3)

(4)

Purpose of the Scheme

The purpose of the Scheme is to provide the Eligible
Participants with an opportunity to have a personal stake
in the Company with a view to motivating the Eligible
Participants to utilize their performance and efficiency
for the benefit of the Group and attracting and retaining
or otherwise maintaining an ongoing relationship with the
Eligible Participants whose contributions are or will be

beneficial to the long term growth of the Group.

Participants of the Scheme

The Board may at its discretion grant options to any director
(whether executive, non-executive or independent non-
executive) or full-time employee of any member of the

Group.

Total number of shares available for issue under the
Scheme and % of the issued share capital as at 31
December 2015

No share was issuable under the share options granted under
the Scheme, representing 0% of the issued share capital as at
31 December 2015.

Maximum entitlement of each participant under the Scheme
The maximum number of shares issuable under the options
to each participant in any 12-month period up to the date
of grant must not exceed 1% of the shares in issue unless
it is approved by shareholders in a general meeting of
the Company. Any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the
Company or to any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of
the shares in issue and with an aggregate value (based on the
closing price of the shares at the date of the grant) in excess
of HK$5 million, in any 12-month period, are subject to
shareholders’ approval in general meeting of the Company.
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()

(6)

()

6))

)

The period within which the shares must be taken up
under an option

An Option may be exercised as specified by the Board in
relation to such option in its terms of grant which shall not
be earlier than 1 year after its date of grant, nor be more
than 10 years from its date of grant.

The minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised

According to the share option scheme of the Company, no
option can be exercised within 1 year after its date of grant
unless otherwise determined by the board of directors of the
Company. In addition, options will vest as to 25% on the
first anniversary of its date of grant and as to the remainder
on the second anniversary of its date of grant.

The amount payable upon acceptance of option
HK$10.00 is payable by each Eligible Participant to the
Company on acceptance of options within 21 days from the
Offer Date.

The Basis of determining the exercise price
The exercise price must be at least the higher of:

(i) the closing price of a share as stated in the daily
quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the Date of
Grant which must be a business day;

(ii)) the average of the closing prices of the Shares as
stated in the daily quotations sheets of the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the Date of Grant; and

(iii) the nominal value of a Share.

The remaining life of the scheme

The Scheme has been expired at the close of business on 29
May 2015.
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SHARE OPTIONS
Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are set out in A/ ] B R AESH#| 2 sE I C W RN G S s %
Note 27 to the consolidated financial statements. Movements in [} 5527 o R AS4EBE R » A</ &) B I HE > & )

the Company’s share options during the year are as follows:

Bl Jie B i )

o
Outstanding
Outstanding at31
atl December
January Cancelled/ 2015

2015 Granted Exercised lapsed during 1 —%—H4

Date of Exercise Exercisable Vesting R-F 14 during during the year +ZR
Grant Price Period Period —~H—H the year the year TR =t-H
BHAW  fHE frti BB MRS REREER RENGE  ER/RR WA A7
Category 1:
BAl—:
Directors 2 5
Edward Ying-Chun Tsui 22.7.2005 HK$0.56 227.2006-  22.7.2005- - - - - -
RIER 0567 2172015 21.7.2006
22.7.2007- 2272003 3,000,000 - (3,000,000) - -
2172015 2172007
Byron Shu-Chan Ho 2272005 HKS0.56 207.2006-  22.7.2005- - - - - -
il 0567 2172015 2172006
2.72007- 2272003 3,000,000 —(1,000,000)  (2,000,000) -
2172015 2172007
Bengie Man-Hang Kwong 22.7.2005 HK$0.56 22.7.2006-  22.7.2005- - - - - -
HaE 0567 2172015 21.7.2006
22.7.2007- 2272003 2,250,000 - (2,250,000) - -
2172015 2172007
Hamed Hassan E1-Abd 2272005 HKS0.56 207.2006-  22.7.2005- - - - - -
10,567 2172015 21.7.2006
22.72007- 2272003 2,250,000 —(2,250,000) - -
2172015 2172007
Hsu Hung-Chich 2272005 HKS$0.56 207.2006-  22.7.2005- - - - - -
AR 0567 2172015 21.7.2006
2272007- 2272005 750,000 - (500,000 (250,000) -
2172015 2172007
Gene Howard Weiner 22.7.2005 HKS$0.56 22.71.2006-  22.7.2005- - - - - -
0567 2172015 21.7.2006
22.7.2007- 2272003 450,000 - (450,000) - -
2172015 2172007
Total for directors
EHEG 11,700,000 - (9,450,000 (2,250,000) -
Category 2:
BRZ:
Employees 2072005 HKS$0.56 227.2006-  22.7.2005- - - - - -
B8 80567 2172015 21.7.2006
207.2007- 22.7.2005- 4,016,000 - (30400000 (976,000) -
2072015 2172007
2692005 HK$0.59 269.2006-  26.9.2005- 50,000 - - (50,000) -
0507 2592015 25.9.2006
269.2007-  26.9.2003- 678,000 - (76,000) (602,000) -
2592015 2592007
Total for employees
[ 5 4t 4,744,000 - (31160000 (1,628,000 -

Total for all categories

LV Sl

16,444,000 - (12,566,000)  (3,878,000) -




INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has been notified that, as at 31 December 2015,
the following persons (other than Directors of the Company) had
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of

the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under

Section 336 of the SFO:

F B R Z B 4R
AN A RN - R R -HEF A=t
H oo MRS 75 B &k 01 5533616 T LU B A 2
GreM 2t sk > NAIAL (BRAS 2 Rl 5h)
T AR ) A5 BRI JBE A5 v 0 A HEE i BSOOR AT

Long positions in shares of the Company A B by 2 WA
Percentage of
Name of substantial Number of total issued shares
shareholders Capacity shares held A T B AT I
FEB KL gl FIi 8 Jt % HWOH 4 L
%
Greatfamily Inc. Interest of controlled corporation (Note 1) 207,800,000 27.62%
Z YL 2 Rt (KAL)
Greatguy Inc. Trustee (Note 1) 207,800,000 27.62%
ZREN (Mfat1)
Senta Wong (BVI) Limited Interest of controlled corporation (Note 2) 122,012,723 16.22%
Z YL 2 Rt (K AE2)
HSBC International Interest of controlled corporations 45,689,735 6.07%
Trustee Limited L L W 2 RS
Wong Chung Yin Beneficial owner, interest of child or 44,011,701 5.85%

T AR

spouse and interest of controlled

corporations (Note 3)
HaWA N T s ie g g &

ZYERNE B AR (I 7E3)




Notes:
1. Please see Note 2 under the section headed “Interests of Directors”.
2. Please see Note 1 under the section headed “Interests of Directors”.

3. Mr. Wong Chung Yin was deemed (by virtue of the SFO) to be
interested in 44,011,701 shares in the Company. These shares were
held in the following capacity:

(a) 2,000,000 shares were held by Mr. Wong Chung Yin
personally.

(b) 450 shares were held under the name of Ms. Woo Sin Ming,
the wife of Mr. Wong Chung Yin.

(c) 25,629,332 shares were held by Levy Investment Limited.
The entire issued share capital of which was 100% owned by
Mr. Wong Chung Yin.

(d) 16,381,919 shares were held by Pacific Way Limited. The
entire issued share capital of which was 50% owned by Mr.
Wong Chung Yin and 50% owned by his wife, Ms. Woo Sin
Ming.

Save as disclosed, the Directors are not aware of any other persons
who, as at 31 December 2015, had interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the

register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices. Information on the corporate
governance practices of the Company is set out in the “Corporate

Governance Report” on pages 36 to 49.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation
to the Group’s business to which the Company was a party and
in which a Director of the Company had a material interest, when
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any

time during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of

compensation (other than statutory compensation).

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company had

been entered into or existed during the year.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company, its subsidiaries
or its associated corporations a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors or chief executives of the Company or their
respective associates to acquire benefits by acquisition of shares
or underlying shares in, or debentures of, the Company or its

associated corporations.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s Bye-laws and subject to the applicable
laws, every Director shall be entitled to be indemnified out of
the assets of the Company against all costs, charges, expenses,
losses and liabilities, which he may sustain or incur in or about
the execution of the duties of his office or otherwise in relation

thereto.

The Company has maintained directors’ liability insurance which
has been in force throughout the financial year and up to the
date of this report to provide appropriate insurance cover for the

Directors of the Company and its subsidiaries.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

On the basis of information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date
of this Annual Report, the Company has complied with the public
float requirements of the Listing Rules for the financial year
ended 31 December 2015.

AUDITOR
PricewaterhouseCoopers will hold office until the conclusion of

the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

The financial statements for the year have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for reappointment at the forthcoming annual general

meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Senta Wong

Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2016
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company recognizes that good corporate governance is vital
to the success of the Group and sustains development of the
Group. The Company aims at complying with, where appropriate,
all code provisions (“Code Provisions™) of the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of
the Listing Rules.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the
principles and the Code Provisions as set out in the CG Code of
the Listing Rules. The Company has, throughout the year ended
31 December 2015 complied with most of the Code Provisions
and certain deviations from the Code Provisions in respect of code
provisions A.2.1, A.4.1, A.4.2 and A.6.7, details of which are
explained below.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTION

The Company had adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors on no less exacting than the terms and
required standard contained in the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”). Having made
specific enquiry of all the Directors, the Company had obtained
confirmation from all the Directors that they have complied with
the required standard set out in the Model Code and the code of
conduct for securities transactions by Directors adopted by the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2015.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board comprises five Executive Directors, two Non-
Executive Directors and four Independent Non-Executive
Directors. One of the Independent Non-Executive Directors
possess the appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise as required under
the Listing Rules. The Directors, as at the date of this report,
are Mr. Senta Wong, Mr. Edward Ying-Chun Tsui, Mr. Byron
Shu-Chan Ho, Mr. Bengie Man-Hang Kwong, Mr. Hamed Hassan
El-Abd, Mr. Leung Kam Fong, Mr. Hsu Hung-Chieh, Mr. John
Ho, Mr. Philip Wan-Chung Tse, Mr. Gene Howard Weiner and
Dr. Yip Wai Chun.

The biographical details of the Directors (including relationship
among the members of the Board) are set out on pages 13 to 17 of
this Annual Report.

Each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors has made an
annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all Independent
Non-Executive Directors meet the independence guidelines set out
in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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The Board met four times in 2015 to review the financial and
operating performance of the Group and to consider and approve
the annual budget for the Group. Individual attendance of each

Board member at these meetings is as follows:

Attendance

Executive Directors
Mr. Senta Wong (Chairman) 4/4
Mr. Edward Ying-Chun Tsui

(Group President and Chief Executive Officer) 4/4
Mr. Byron Shu-Chan Ho (Chief Financial Officer) 4/4
Mr. Bengie Man-Hang Kwong 4/4
Mr. Hamed Hassan El-Abd 4/4
Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Leung Kam Fong 4/4
Mr. Hsu Hung-Chieh 4/4
Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. John Ho 4/4
Mr. Philip Wan-Chung Tse 3/4
Mr. Gene Howard Weiner 4/4
Dr. Yip Wai Chun 3/4

Other Board Meetings with the attendance of senior management
were held regularly during the year to discuss the day-to-day
management and administration as well as the recent business

development of the Group.

All minutes of the Board Meetings are prepared and kept by the
Company Secretary and open for inspection by Directors upon

reasonable notice.

BOARD DIVERSITY
In August 2013, the Board adopted a board diversity policy which

sets out the approach to achieve board diversity in the Company.
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The Board Diversity Policy is summarized as follows:

- the Company ensures that its Board has the appropriate
balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
that are required to support the execution of its business

strategy and in order for the Board to be effective.

- selection of candidates will be based on a range of
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age,
culture and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The
ultimate decision will be based on meritocracy and the
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board.

- the Nomination Committee will take into consideration of
the Board Diversity Policy in identifying and nominating
suitably qualified candidates to become members of the
Board.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND CONTINUING
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME
Pursuant to the Code Provision A.6.5, all directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their
contribution to the board remains informed and relevant. The
Company should be responsible for arranging and funding suitable
training, placing an appropriate emphasis on the roles, functions

and duties of the directors.

The Company updates directors on the latest development
regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements from time to time, to ensure compliance and enhance

their awareness of good corporate governance practices.

During the year, the Company had arranged a seminar conducted
by lawyers for the directors of the Company. The seminar
covered topics including the procedures for disclosure of insider
information, notifiable and connected transactions, updates on

Main Board Listing Rules and relevant laws and regulations.
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According to the records provided by the directors, a summary of % # F IR FE Bk > EFH N E T — A4F
training received by the directors for the year ended 31 December — + — H =+ — H 1k 4F B A # 52 55 3 69 #E 22 40

2015 is as follows: N
Type of
continuous
professional
development
programmes
Name of Directors R HE
HEM A B J st B2
Executive Directors
7 #EF
Senta Wong A, B
T AR
Edward Ying-Chun Tsui A, B
Byron Shu-Chan Ho A, B
o] 48} %
Bengie Man-Hang Kwong A, B
i
Hamed Hassan El-Abd A, B
Non-Executive Directors
BT EF
Leung Kam Fong A, B
Edab
Hsu Hung-Chieh A, B
b
Independent Non-Executive Directors
TSI AT
John Ho A, B
f] %
Philip Wan-Chung Tse A, B
BIPL
Gene Howard Weiner A, B
Yip Wai Chun B
E i
Notes: Mz -
A: attending briefing sessions and/or seminars A EEANE RS

B:  reading seminar materials and updates relating to the latest B : [ a4 B L iy A3 21 b HAth 25 1 B 8 B o

development of the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory 5 00 B e A R BE O R
requirements



CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and
chief executive should be separate and should not be performed by

the same individual.

With effect from 1 March 2015, Mr. Senta Wong has stepped
down from his position as the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. With effect from the same date, Mr. Edward Ying-
Chun Tsui,
Company, has been appointed as the Chief Executive Officer of

an Executive Director and Group President of the

the Company. Following the aforesaid change of Chief Executive
Officer of the Company on 1 March 2015, the Company has fully

complied with code provision A.2.1.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Code Provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive directors

should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.

None of the existing Non-Executive Directors of the Company
is appointed for a specific term. This constitutes a deviation
from code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code. In accordance with
the provisions of the Bye-laws of the Company, any Director
appointed by the Board during the year shall retire and submit
themselves for re-election at the next annual general meeting
immediately following his/her appointment. Further, at each
annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time
being, or if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then
the number nearest to but not exceeding one-third, shall retire
from office. The directors to retire by rotation shall be those
who have been longest in office since their last re-election or
appointment. As such, the Company considers that sufficient
measures have been taken to ensure that the Company’s corporate

governance practices are similar to those in the CG Code.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS
Code Provision A.4.2 stipulates that all directors appointed to fill
a casual vacancy should be subject to election by shareholders
at the first general meeting after appointment. Every director,
including those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to

retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
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According to the Bye-laws of the Company, all Directors (except
Executive Chairman or Managing or Joint Managing Director)
of the Company are subject to retirement by rotations and re-
elections at the annual general meeting of the Company. This
constitutes a deviation from the CG Code. As continuation is
a key factor to the successful implementation of any long term
business plans, the Board believes that the present arrangement is

most beneficial to the Company and the shareholders as a whole.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS ATTENDING GENERAL
MEETINGS

Code provision A.6.7 stipulates that independent non-executive
directors and other non-executive directors should also attend

general meetings.

All the Non-Executive Directors (including the Independent Non-
Executive Directors) attended the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 12 June 2015 except an Independent Non-
Executive Director who cannot attend the annual general meeting

as he was not in Hong Kong on that date.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS
The Remuneration Committee was established in April 2005.
The Committee now comprises three Independent Non-Executive

Directors, who are:

Mr. John Ho (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee)
Mr. Philip Wan-Chung Tse
Dr. Yip Wai Chun

The Remuneration Committee is set up to assist the Board in
establishing a formal and transparent procedure for setting policy
on Directors’ and senior management’s remuneration and to make
recommendation to the Board on the remuneration packages of
the executive directors and senior management of the Group,
including the terms of salary and bonus schemes and share option

scheme.
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Prior to making its recommendations, the Committee consults the
Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer and takes
into consideration factors including the Group’s performance
and profitability, experience, duties and time commitment
of Directors, prevailing market conditions, salaries paid by
comparable companies, employment conditions elsewhere in the
Group and desirability of performance-based remuneration. The
Committee has adopted the operation model where it performs
an advisory role to the Board, with the Board retaining the final
authority to approve the remuneration packages of individual
Executive Directors and senior management. The Committee is
provided with sufficient resources enabling it to discharge its
duties.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee reviewed the
remuneration packages of the executive Directors and the senior
management of the Company. No Director was involved in
deciding his own remuneration.

The Committee met once in 2015. Individual attendance of each

Committee member at these meetings is as follows:

Attendance
Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. John Ho (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee) 1/1
Mr. Philip Wan-Chung Tse 1/1
Dr. Yip Wai Chun 1/1
In Attendance:
Executive Director
Mr. Byron Shu-Chan Ho 1/1

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the remuneration of the

members of the senior management by band is set out below:

Remuneration band (HKS$) Number of persons

0 to 1,000,000 11
1,000,001 to 1,500,000 11
1,500,001 to 2,000,000 4
2,000,001 or above 1

Further particulars regarding the Directors’ and chief executive’s
emoluments and the five highest paid individuals as required to be
disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 of the Listing Rules are set out
in Note 10 to the financial statements.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Nomination Committee on
12 March 2012. The primary duties of the Nomination Committee
are to review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually
and make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board
to complement the Company’s corporate strategy.

A written terms of reference for the Nomination Committee,
which clearly defined the role, authority and function of the

Nomination Committee, has been adopted by the Group.

The Nomination Committee comprises three members, a majority
of whom are independent non-executive directors and is chaired
by the chairman of the Board. The members are:

Executive Director

Mr. Senta Wong (Chairman of the Nomination Committee)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. John Ho
Mr. Philip Wan-Chung Tse

Before setting up of the Nomination Committee, the Board
was collectively responsible for nominating new Directors and
reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board from
time to time.

During the year, the Nomination Committee reviewed the

structure, size and composition of the Board.

In March 2016, the Nomination Committee made recommendations
to the Board on the re-appointment of retiring directors for
shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
It also assessed the independence of the Independent Non-

Executive Directors of the Company.

The Committee met once in 2015. Individual attendance of each
Committee member at this meeting is as follows:

Attendance

Executive Director
Mr. Senta Wong (Chairman of the Nomination Committee) 1/1

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. John Ho 1/1
Mr. Philip Wan-Chung Tse 1/1

RUEZRE
AARR-F—-HFE A AROLRA
B RAZEGZERRAN RO EBFEM
P S 2 R R AL AR (BLAR HERE -
i e HEBR) o AT ] R S AR A A
FEHE R > DAL A2 | B A S S

AEBCRMIEY Z B GEmMAERRE -
RAZEGZ A0 - HERIIREA A

P

JE °

WRAZAEGH =2 M B A > KZ 8B
FHATES  ZEFTTHHEFE T ME -
WA

HITEF
M (8H & A E )

WL AT ER
AT %) 71 5 18
i e e

RS IR A T B g 2 ER e A A R
507 T A DA SOAS Al R 2 LR
Je LA o

R RAZBEGOMHEREG BN B
5 R AR o

ROENAEZH S AT B G EBRIBAL
) B PR R (BRI B B AT
ARG B - IR Z B G AA
08 A SL IR AT HE B SL AR AR

AR -RAEENEAEGIEH g -
ZHREX WA NZ G MR

e R
HIrH#EH
T E (BEZE AT 1/1
WL BT HEF
{A] &) 3 5 A= 1/1
i = ek 1/1



AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2015,
HK$1,700,000 was incurred as remuneration to the Company’s
auditor for the provision of audit services. Other audit firms

approximately

provided recurring audit services to subsidiaries at a fee of
approximately HK$800,000. During the year, the remuneration
paid to the Company’s auditor and other audit firms for
the provision of non-audit related services to the Group are
approximately HK$140,000 and HK$448,000, respectively.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established in 1999. The Committee
now comprises three Independent Non-Executive Directors, who
are:

Mr. John Ho (Chairman of the Audit Committee)
Mr. Philip Wan-Chung Tse
Dr. Yip Wai Chun

A written terms of reference for the Audit Committee, which
clearly defined the role, authority and function of the Audit
Committee, has been adopted by the Group.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee has been updated
in the year to incorporate the amendments to the Listing Rules on
risk management and internal control applicable from 1 January
2016. The revised terms of reference of the Audit Committee are
available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange
respectively.

The Audit Committee met two times in 2015. Individual
attendance of each Committee member at these meetings is as
follows:

Attendance
Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. John Ho (Chairman of the Audit Committee) 2/2
Mr. Philip Wan-Chung Tse 2/2
Dr. Yip Wai Chun 172
In Attendance:
Finance Director 2/2
External Auditors 2/2

The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited financial
statements with management and the Company’s External
Auditors, and recommended its adoption by the Board.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS
The Board has delegated the responsibility of performing the
following corporate governance duties to the Audit Committee of

the Company:

1.  To develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the
board;

2. To review and monitor the training and continuous

professional development of directors and senior

management;

3. Toreview and monitor the Company’s policies and practices

on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4.  To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to the employees and
directors of the Company; and

5. To review the Company compliance with the CG Code and

disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

The Audit Committee has performed the above-mentioned
corporate governance functions by reviewing the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance as well as legal
and regulatory compliance.

DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board acknowledges that it is their responsibility for (i)
overseeing the preparation of the financial statements of the
Group with a view to ensuring such financial statements give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and (ii)
selecting suitable accounting policies and applying the selected
accounting policies consistently with the support of reasonable
and prudent judgement and estimates.

A statement by the auditor about their reporting responsibilities is

set out on pages 50 to 51 of this Annual Report.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for establishing, maintaining and
operating an effective system of internal controls. Group Internal
Audit was established for many years to provide independent
assurance to the Board and executive management on the
adequacy and effectiveness of internal controls for the Group.
The head of Group Internal Audit reports directly to the Group
Chairman and the Group Chief Financial Officer.
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Group Internal Audit adopts a risk-and-control-based audit
approach. The annual work plan of Group Internal Audit covers
major activities and processes of the Group’s business and service
units. The audit plan is reviewed and agreed by the Board. In
addition to the agreed schedule of work, Group Internal Audit
conducts other review and investigative work as may be required.
All audit reports are communicated to the Board and key members
of executive and senior management. Audit issues are tracked and
followed up for proper implementation, with progress reported to

the Board, executive and senior management periodically.

During the year, Group Internal Audit conducted reviews of the
effectiveness of the Group’s system of internal controls over
financial, operational, compliance controls and risk management
functions and reported their findings to the Board. After a review
of the accounting period ended 31 December 2015, the Board
did not become aware of any areas of concern that would have
an adverse impact on the Company’s financial position or results
of operations and considered the internal control systems to be

effective and adequate.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
The Company has established its own website (www.wkk.com.hk)

as a means to communicate with the shareholders.

The Company communicates with the shareholders mainly in
the following ways: (i) the holding of annual general meetings
which provide an opportunity for the shareholders to communicate
directly to the Board; (ii) the publication of announcements,
annual reports, interim reports and/or circulars as required under
the Listing Rules and press releases of the Company providing
updated information of the Group; and (iii) the availability of

latest information of the Group in our website.

In March 2012, the Board has established a shareholder
communication policy. The policy is subject to review on a

regular basis to ensure its effectiveness.
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The attendance record of the Directors of the annual general

meeting held on 12 June 2015 is as follows:

Attendance

Executive Directors
Mr. Senta Wong (Chairman) 1/1
Mr. Edward Ying-Chun Tsui

(Group President and Chief Executive Officer) 1/1
Mr. Byron Shu-Chan Ho (Chief Financial Officer) 171
Mr. Bengie Man-Hang Kwong 1/1
Mr. Hamed Hassan EI-Abd 1/1
Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Leung Kam Fong 1/1
Mr. Hsu Hung-Chieh 1/1
Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. John Ho 1/1
Mr. Philip Wan-Chung Tse 0/1
Mr. Gene Howard Weiner 1/1
Dr. Yip Wai Chun 1/1

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convene a special general meeting
Subject to the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, the Company’s
Bye-laws and applicable legislation and regulation, shareholder(s)
holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth (10%) of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company, may
require the directors of the Company to convene a special general
meeting (“SGM”). The requisition must state the purposes of the
meeting, and must be signed by the shareholder(s) concerned
and deposited at the registered office of the Company at
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton, HM11 Bermuda
or at the Company’s principal office at 17/F, Octa Tower, No.8
Lam Chak Street, Kowloon Bay, Hong Kong for the attention
of the Company Secretary. The requisition may consist of
several documents in like form, each signed by one or more

shareholder(s) concerned.

HHER E-HTFEANA T HARZ RAE

FERE BRI
R R

H 7 H

T S () 1/1
e et

(LE [ 35 3143 e 17 B A ) 1/1
A8 e A (AR #) /1
J A1 S A= 1/1
Hamed Hassan El-Abd%t 4 1/1
HHITEH
PO e 1/1
W /1
WL EHITEF
fa %585 e A= /1
i % e A 0/1
Gene Howard Weiner7c 4 1/1
BEMEE B 1/1
Ji% 3 RE F1
JBE A PR B AR K & & B F

ZHFEI9SIE A E L > AN E Z A AR
T3 P 2 kA0 B BB > e R AT SR A A
) (1 2 =52 Pk A B B RO PR (B o
Kerl)  ABBORAAEFGE KEE B HRES
RO A G2 —10%) AL T C L EA
1M B3 G A A 5% K E A0 H A 7EA A )
IR G b RPIIRER o 3% 1w wg oKk 2 2k B
g B A > S A B 0 R S T A OR A
25 Al B A E R R (it & Clarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton, HM11 Bermuda) {7
A Z FEHEE ( i{ﬁiﬁﬁ%i’%ﬂi@%ﬁﬁﬁfﬁ
SR MHUMS B 5 1748 > Sl Gk W B m RS
SR =5 AT AL B oy [ AR A% =X SO Wﬁfﬁj(
) h — 2N E R — A AR EE -



If the directors of the Company do not within 21 days from the
date of the deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a
SGM, the shareholder(s) concerned, or any of them representing
more than one- half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
themselves convene a SGM, provided that the SGM so convened
shall not be held after the expiration of 3 months from the said
date.

The SGM convened by shareholders shall be convened in the same
manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which general meetings

are to be convened by the directors of the Company.

Any reasonable expenses incurred by the shareholder(s) concerned
by reason of the failure of the directors duly to convene a SGM

shall be repaid to the shareholder(s) concerned by the Company.

Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to the board
Shareholders should direct their questions about their
shareholdings to the Company’s Hong Kong Registrar. The

contact details of the Registrar are as follows:

Tricor Standard Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

Tel No.: (852) 2980 1333
Fax No.: (852) 2861 1465

Shareholders may send their enquiries to the board of directors of
the Company in writing through the Company Secretary whose

contact details are as follows:

The Company Secretary

Wong’s Kong King International (Holdings) Limited
17/F, Octa Tower

No.8 Lam Chak Street

Kowloon Bay

Hong Kong

Tel No.: +852 2357 8888

Fax No.: +852 2357 8999

Shareholders may also put forward their enquiries to the Board at

the general meetings of the Company.
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Procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals at a
general meeting

Subject to the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, the Company’s
Bye-laws and applicable legislation and regulation, either any
number of the registered shareholders holding not less than one-
twentieth (5%) of the paid up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company, or not
less than 100 registered shareholders, can request the Company in
writing to (a) give to shareholders entitled to receive notice of the
next annual general meeting notice of any resolution which may
properly be moved and is intended to be moved at that meeting;
and (b) circulate to shareholders entitled to have notice of any
general meeting any statement of not more than 1,000 words with
respect to the matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the
business to be dealt with at that meeting.

The written requisition and a sum of money reasonably sufficient
to meet the Company’s expenses for serving the notice of
the resolution and circulating the statement submitted by the
registered shareholders concerned in accordance with the statutory
and regulatory requirements to all the registered shareholders
must be deposited at the registered office of the Company at
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda
or at the Company’s principal office at 17/F, Octa Tower, No.8
Lam Chak Street, Kowloon Bay, Hong Kong for the attention of
the Company Secretary of the Company not less than six weeks
before the meeting in case of a requisition requiring notice of
a resolution; and not less than one week before the meeting in
the case of any other requisition; and where an annual general
meeting is called for a date six weeks or less after the requisition
requiring notice of a resolution has been deposited, the requisition
though not deposited within the time required shall be deemed to
have been properly deposited for such purpose.

The written requisition must be signed by the registered
shareholders concerned and may consist of several documents
in like form, each signed by one or more of these shareholders.
The written requisition will be verified with the Company’s
Share Registrars and upon their confirmation that the requisition
is proper and in order, the Company Secretary of the Company
will ask the Board to include the resolution in the agenda for
the general meeting, and serving the notice of the resolution and
circulating the statement submitted by the registered shareholders
concerned in accordance with the statutory and regulatory
requirements to all the registered shareholders. On the contrary,
if the written requisition has been verified as not in order, the
shareholders concerned will be advised of this outcome and
accordingly, the proposed resolution will not be included in the
agenda for the general meeting.

Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election
as a director

As regards proposing a person other than the retiring Director
for election as a Director in a general meeting, please refer to the
procedures available on the website of the Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
During the financial year 2015, there was no change in the
Company’s Memorandum of Association and Bye-Laws.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

i
pwec

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
WONG’S KONG KING INTERNATIONAL
(HOLDINGS) LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Wong’s
Kong King International (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 52 to 156,
which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December
2015, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting

policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any

other person for the contents of this report.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are

free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the

consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the financial position of the Company and its
subsidiaries as at 31 December 2015, and of their financial
performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements

of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 30 March 2016
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
For the year ended 31 December 2015

BOHFIER

BE X -hnHE+A=1+—HILHE

2015 2014
“R R CE U4
Note HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
B & E BT T T
Revenue U #i 5 4,921,570 5,778,057
Gain on disposal of land and building 8 1 J& # 5 2 i 4 - 23,682
Other gains J: il Y% £ 7 6,253 293
Raw materials and consumables used J&#1 % 5% £ 8 F 1 #€ (2,831,452) (3,710,182)
Purchases of finished goods i B & 1 i (884,352) (949,453)
Changes in inventories of finished goods and work in progress
B S A 2 S ) (89,568) 15,085
Employee benefit expenses 1 B &l b 52 9 (677,603) (701,459)
Depreciation and amortisation $/7# J # & (66,294) (61,563)
Other expenses At B % (289,855) (288,458)
Operating profit 8 % Ji 8 88,699 106,002
Finance income Rl & It A 7,012 11,936
Finance costs il & B 4% (8,872) (14,006)
Finance costs, net [l & A - #§{H 11 (1,860) (2,070)
Share of profit/(loss) of a joint venture
fifl— W& & AR AL () 221 (658)
Write-back of/(provision for) allowance for doubtful debts
on amount due from a joint venture
JRE i — T 5 78 8 R RT3 1l () 44 (44)
265 (702)
Profit before income tax B it 5 Bt i % Al 87,104 103,230
Income tax expense FT15Fi 32 12 (30,034) (30,159)
Profit for the year 7% 4F J& %5 £l 57,070 73,071
Attributable to: FE)& :
Owners of the Company 2 23 ) #E #5155 5 & 47,037 66,639
Non-controlling interests Ff 4 il 14 #5 10,033 6,432
57,070 73,071
Earnings per share for profit attributable to the owners
of the Company during the year
AR AR O E) R g8 R A AN R 2 4 ik R
(expressed in HK cents per share) (DA% Bl 2 51))
— basic F:7A& 13(a) 6.30 9.01
— diluted #f 13(b) 6.28 8.98

The notes on pages 59 to 156 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
At 31 December 2015

EHEERER

W oEFE—-HFE+T_H=Z+—H

2015 2014
—R T k=
Note HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
o W T BT I
ASSETS ¥ i
Non-current assets JF i By & &
Land use rights + Hififi F #E 15 13,305 13,666
Property, plant and equipment %) 2 ~ i 55 5 5 16 562,722 578,968
Deposits and prepayments % 4z J 76 7 2k JH 4,393 3,746
Intangible assets #J & /& 17 8,031 16,624
Interests in joint ventures £ & 24 7 2 H#E 4 18 908 639
Deferred tax assets 4% % Fi JH & 7 20 4,309 4,358
Available-for-sale financial assets 7] ik H} 85 4 @l ' & 21 35,512 36,543
Club membership and debentures € £& % & 7= 14,803 14,956
643,983 669,500
Current assets T B) & &
Inventories 17 & 22 497,750 719,159
Trade and other receivables & 5 Jz H Ath E i ik 7k 23 1,375,867 1,337,813
Deposits and prepayments % 4 & 78 £} 3 JH 56,176 48,552
Tax recoverable ] I 5] Ff 16 99 403
Derivative financial instruments fiT 4 4 fjl T. 2 24 - 3
Short-term time deposits £ 4 & B 17 3K 25 185,313 99,721
Cash and cash equivalents 34 & Bl 4 %5 {HH H 25 215,896 282,063
2,331,101 2,487,714
Total assets & s S {H 2,975,084 3,157,214
LIABILITIES £ &
Non-current liabilities i ¥ B £1 &
Obligations under finance leases — due after one year
il AR BRI — R — AR 30 15 -
Provision for assets retirement obligations
B A AR [ R I JE 1,710 1,710
Deferred tax liabilities 7 4E B JH £ i 20 1,248 1,665
Retirement benefit obligations %5 /A% Fll 7K & 31 7,855 8,187
10,828 11,562

The notes on pages 59 to 156 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)
At 31 December 2015

EHEEREER(
R oE—HAFET A=

&)
+¥

2015 2014
G S 70 e SIS
Note HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000
B &E BT T T
Current liabilities ¥ B £ &
Trade, bills and other payables
B 5 EAT R AR ~ TR A 5 4% R F At R A°F MR 3K 32 870,944 879,370
Current income tax liabilities R BT 15 B £ 18 9,108 7,226
Bank borrowings — due within one year
SRATHEE - — R 29 502,502 689,246
Obligations under finance leases — due within one year
il B R I — R — AR A E Y 30 3 992
Derivative financial instruments
itk TR 24 23 816
1,382,580 1,577,650
Total liabilities £ {5 48 % 1,393,408 1,589,212
EQUITY fi%
Capital and reserves attributable to
owners of the Company
A oy E) B g A A AR B ik A
Share capital &4 26 75,224 73,967
Reserves fiff ffi 1,415,774 1,403,774
1,490,998 1,477,741
Non-controlling interests JF £ il ¥ # & 90,678 90,261
Total equity /1% HE 44 % 1,581,676 1,568,002
Total equity and liabilities I #E K& £ {if 42 % 2,975,084 3,157,214

The financial statements on pages 149 to 150 were approved by
the Board of Directors on 30 March 2016 and were signed on its
behalf.

Senta Wong

Director

Byron Shu-Chan Ho

Director

The notes on pages 59 to 156 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 31 December 2015

BORERER

BE X -hnHE+A=1+—HILHE

2015 2014
“E N4 ST YA
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
T T T
Profit for the year 7% 4F Ji& i Fl 57,070 73,071
Other comprehensive (loss)/income: Hib s OB#HE) s -
Item that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
HENGEH S EE w2 HH
Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations
B wt R AR R R I (1,183) 114
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss
A BEF R M E A 7 2 T H
Currency translation differences £ [ 5. 2% %H (24,487) (11,150)
Fair value (loss)/gains on available-for-sale financial assets, net of tax
AL T RS HR) licR » BRBLTT AR (762) 225
Total comprehensive income for the year 7% 4 Ji % & W #5 48 % 30,638 62,260
Attributable to: FE)& :
Owners of the Company 75/ 7 RE & 1 A # 24,907 59,821
Non-controlling interests IE 22 i) 14 HE 45 5,731 2,439
30,638 62,260

The notes on pages 59 to 156 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY &S f3tREZ S Bk
WEF—HAFE+ A=+ —HILEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015

Non-
controlling
Attributable to owners interests
of the Company el
A4 RV B 5 % A B4
Other Retained
reserves earnings
Share (Note 28) (Note)
capital  HABREM R AR Total
it & (Fff3k28) (H5E) A
HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000
BETE  WETL  BETE  BETR  EETE
Balance at 1 January 014 R % —-ME-A-H2&% 73967 146070 1212676 ¢ 96,624 1509331
Comprehensive income %7 7 I £
Profit for the year 74 i 71 - - 66,639 6,432 73,071
Other comprehensive income £ fls 4% & Wi &
Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations T 57 5 & iR /i 48 A K A& - - 11 103 114
Currency translation differences & [ it 2 4 - (6,981) - (4,169) (11,150)
Fair value gajns on available-for-sale financial assets, net of tax
Tt SRR AT EGE  BRBLE R - 152 - 73 25
Total other comprehensive (loss)/income $¢ 4 £ (1) /i 44 4 - (6.829) i (3.993) (10811)
Total comprehensive income 561 Vi H# - ____ (6829) ___ 66650 ____2439____ ! 62,260
Transactions with owners S HE# i % 2 R 5
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests 3 i ¥l ¥4 1 £ 2 it & - - - (8,802) (8,802)
2013 final dividend ~ % — =X MK E - - (14,793) - (14,793)
Balance at 31 December 2014 =% M4+ = =+ —H 2 Gilk 73967 139041 1064533 90261 1.568.002
Balance at 1 Janvary 015 R~ % —hfE-fA—-H2&th 73967 139241 1264533 ¢ 90261 1,568,002
Comprehensive income %7 7 I £
Profit for the year 7% f i - - 47,037 10,033 57,070
Other comprehensive loss {4 1 18
Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations 7 #t & 1 47 AR A& - - (763) (420) (1,183)
Currency translation differences £ [ 5.5 4 - (20,852) - (3,633) (24,487)
Fair value loss on available-for-sale financigl assets, net of tax
A ERBEE LA THESR BB - (515) - (247) (762)
Total other comprehensive loss $1il 5 £ 1 1R 4 4 - (21,367) (763) (4,302) (26,432)
Total comprehensive income £ WA - ___(QI3) ___ 4624 ___ 5SBL____: 30638
Transactions with owners S H i ff 5 % Z X 5
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests 3 7 - 7 7 il 4 1 £ 2 it £ - - - (5314) (5,314)
2014 final dividend ~ % — P4 RIS - - (18,690) - (18,690)
Issue of ordinary shares upon exercise of share options (Note 27)
T A A L A (W =E27) 1,257 5,783 - - 7,040
Balance at 31 December 2015
REZ-HEF A=~ A2 Bl 15,004 123.657 1,092,117 90.678 1581676

Note:

As at 31 December 2015, included in retained earnings are statutory
reserves of HK$64,391,000 (2014: HK$61,758,000). These statutory
reserves are non-distributable and the transfers of these funds are
determined by the Board of Directors of the relevant subsidiaries in
accordance with the laws and regulations in the People’s Republic of

China (the “PRC”) and Taiwan.

The notes on pages 59 to 156 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 4B 4HheEax

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE-EX—TFE T A= —HIFEE
2015 2014
B S k2 — -4
Note HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
i W T BT I

Cash flows from operating activities &% £ B Z B & 0 &

Cash generated from operations #% 2 £ 75 Ui 15 B & 33(a) 312,505 3,101
Income tax paid &4 T 1588 (25,713) (24,439)
Tax on dividend paid by subsidiaries

Wi JB 2 W IR A 2 i S 2 B A (2,104) (3,140)

Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities

KR ZERS IS, (TR B4 4 284,688 (24,478)

Cash flows from investing activities # &I B2 Bl &R &

Interest received & Y F 5 7,012 11,936

Dividend income from available-for-sale financial assets

AT A B 2 I B 509 293

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

W B2~ R BB (47,424) (49,040)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment

HAE Y ~ RS BB P 7 3R 33(b) 1,248 46,891

Additions to intangible assets s & ¥ & & (14) 9
Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets

S ATt R e - (3,622)
Increase in prepayments TE {5 2K JE 3% il (498) (393)
(Increase)/decrease in short-term time deposits

J 0 E WA R (R B (85,592) 43,662

Increase in long-term deposits = 1 #% 4 #4 il (149) (608)

Net cash (used in)/generated from investing activities

BOEwE® i m) iS5 4 1 (124,908) 49,110

Cash flows from financing activities fll & 1if B = 3 £ Wi &

Dividends paid B B (18,690) (14,793)
Interest paid T f} 5. (8,872) (14,006)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests

ST IR FE R AR 2 A S (5,314) (8,802)
Proceeds from new bank borrowings 1 817 £ i 15 2 & 2,834,331 3,532,823
Repayment of bank borrowings & # 47 {5 & (3,021,075) (3,765,287)
Decrease in obligations under finance leases

il 5 L B R A D 974) (1,250)
Issuance of ordinary shares upon exercise of share option

A7 0 W Fse HE I 8 A 3 8 7,040 -

Net cash used in financing activities fl & i ) it F L 5 1 5 (213,554) (271,315)




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED) & #tIRE&RE R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZEX—TFET A= —HIFEE
2015 2014
B S k2 — A
Note HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
B T BT T

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Bl e B S (E JH H WD AR (53,774) (246,683)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

REN 2 Bla kB HEA 282,063 534,604
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [ifE 3% 5 &) 2 5 %8 (12,393) (5,858)

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

WERZEH S NHE&EHEE 215,896 282,063

Analysis of cash and cash equivalents:
Bl KBS EEH T
Bank balances and cash 47 5 i & Bl & 25 215,896 282,063

215,896 282,063

The notes on pages 59 to 156 are an integral part of these 5559 % 55156 E 2 Bf 5 AL L 25 & DF BA A% it

consolidated financial statements. K2 —HB5 -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2015

SO I WAR M EE
WE T FEF S IR

1 GENERAL INFORMATION 1
Wong’s Kong King International (Holdings) Limited (the

— B & R

Wong’s Kong King International (Holdings)
Limited ([ A2 7] 1) S H b a2 7] (A7
(A S B 1) 35 224t g gk Bl 78 Bk e K%
BT T AL B G~ PR B S
BT e KEH o VAR IR i P R
([ S % 5 30 ) A o T b o

“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”)
are principally engaged in the trading and distribution of
chemicals, materials and equipment used in the manufacture
of printed circuit boards and electronic products and the
manufacture of electrical and electronic products for

original equipment manufacturer (“OEM”) customers.

AN B R T 5 A G A AL B — [ 2
B 2 AR > H R 1 & WA L
Gy T A BR 2 B LT e T b g
2 /5 Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM11 Bermuda - Ifii 3 42 245
S b B J 7 Vs U HE I R IS S SR BUNG

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The address of
its registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM11 Bermuda and its principal place of business
is 17/F, Octa Tower, No.8 Lam Chak Street, Kowloon Bay,

Hong Kong.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in

Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated.

1THE o

B 73 A 5 BIAL > e 5 F B 5k 3R DA s

B 271 .

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation

F R At BOR B

A B AE A DB IR I IR A R
FREECR AT © Br7 A SIS - fr 252
A © B U % S O -

of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the

years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation 2.1 AR AR

G B mETIRBEN A # A2
B B 5 o e R (1 76 B
U ) MR o 5 OF RS R %
JEE S0 A R A > Sl S AT
G T R AR E AR KA A
1R 4 2 4 A B A AR (B
i TH) Z EAG/E & R -

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”). The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by
the revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets
and financial assets and financial liabilities (including
derivative financial instruments) at fair value through

profit or loss.



2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity

with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical

accounting estimates. It also requires management to

exercise its judgement in the process of applying the

Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a

higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas

where assumptions and estimates are significant to

the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in
Note 4.

(a)

New and amended standards adopted by the
Group

The following amendments and interpretations
have been adopted by the Group for the first
time for the financial year beginning on or after
1 January 2015:

Amendment to HKAS 19 on contributions from
employees or third parties to defined benefit
plans. The amendment distinguishes between
contributions that are linked to service only
in the period in which they arise and those
linked to service in more than one period. The
amendment allows contributions that are linked
to service, and do not vary with the length of
employee service, to be deducted from the cost
of benefits earned in the period that the service
is provided. Contributions that are linked to
service, and vary according to the length of
employee service, must be spread over the
service period using the same attribution method

that is applied to the benefits.

2
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a)

New and amended standards adopted by the
Group (Continued)

Amendments from annual improvements to

HKFRSs-2010-2012 Cycle, on HKFRS 8,
“Operating segments”, HKAS 16, “Property,
plant and equipment”, HKAS 38, “Intangible

and HKAS 24,

disclosures”.

assets” “Related party

Amendments from annual improvements to
HKFRSs-2011-2013 Cycle, on HKFRS 3,
HKFRS 13,

value measurement” and HKAS 40,

property”.

“Business combinations”, “Fair

“Investment

The adoption of the improvements made in
the 2010-2012 Cycles has required additional
disclosures in the segment note. Other than that,
the remaining amendments are not expected to

have material impact to the Group.

Other standards, amendments and interpretations
which are effective for the financial year
beginning on 1 January 2015 are not expected to

have material impact to the Group.

2 FEGHFIBORME (&)

2.1 MBI ()

(a)
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EREGEBORBE (4
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 MBI ()

(b) The following new standards and amendments to (b) DT AEHEMER -F—H
standards have been issued but are not effective A — 1 — H BH IR 2 B U [H]
for the financial period beginning 1 January [T A S G = W 7 P
2015 and have not been early adopted: ZTRTE ) T E RN 2 A

Effective for annual periods
beginning on or after
VR 3] b
A JEE 0 ] A 5
HKAS 1 (Amendments) Disclosure Initiative 1 January 2016
Fis g A5 (B8 A “E-RE-H—H
HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 Clarification of Acceptable Methods of 1 January 2016
(Amendments) Depreciation and Amortisation
Bl grHEAF 69 LA G T EN  IE R TR R “EZ-RFE-HA—H
5385k (80
HKAS 16 and HKAS 41 (Amendments) Agriculture: Bearer Plants 1 January 2016
FEGFHEAF I LA B GEN  RE AEEMEY e S
415 (B0
HKAS 27 (Amendments) Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements 1 January 2016
kg st R 2798 (B T or B R 2 M A “E-RE-H-H
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments 1 January 2018
7 1t 5 2 e U S0 5% SRTHR “E = NE—-H—H
HKEFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Note
(Amendments) Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture
v S ik o R B 10558 R A s BREFMARBLARANEGELARZ Wit &E
TR 552858 () I Y 7 i B A
HKERS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation 1 January 2016
(Amendments) Exception
7 s S 5 A5 ME S 1098 REER - EAGHHE “E-RE-H—H
7 s 5 A YR U R 12
T G RTS8 (B0
HKEFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests 1 January 2016
(Amendment) in Joint Operations
7 s S A YRS 118 (B0 Wi A A R AR BRI “E-RE-H—H
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts 1 January 2016
7 ik SO O R B 145 HERERA “E=ANE-H—H
HKERS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 1 January 2018
7 s J 5 3 R SR 15 9% KAZFGHZHA “E-NFE-H—H
HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycles 1 January 2016

TE— TAER TR AR 2 T CE-AE-H—H
eI i

Note: The effective date was postponed indefinitely. FfE 2 o Az 2 H 3k 4 SR A 0 4% o



2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1

2.2

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The Group has already commenced an assessment of
the impact of these new and amended standards but
is not yet in a position to state whether these new and
amended standards would have a significant impact on

its results of operations and financial position.

In addition, the requirements of Part 9 “Accounts and
Audit” of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622) come into operation during the financial
year, as a result, there are changes to presentation and
disclosures of certain information in the consolidated

financial statements.

Subsidiaries

2.2.1 Consolidation
A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred to
the Group. They are deconsolidated from the

date that control ceases.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are de-consolidated from the date that

control ceases.

2
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(a)

Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations.
The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair
values of the assets transferred, the
liabilities incurred to the former owners
of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of
any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in
a business combination are measured
initially at their fair values at the

acquisition date.

The Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis. Non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present
ownership interests and entitle their
holders to a proportionate share of
the entity’s net assets in the event of
liquidation are measured at either fair
value or the present ownership interests’
proportionate share in the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at their
acquisition date fair value, unless another

measurement basis is required by HKFRS.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as

incurred.

2
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(a)

Business combinations (Continued)

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is re-measured
to fair value at the acquisition date; any
gains or losses arising from such re-
measurement are recognised in profit or

loss.

Any contingent consideration to be
transferred by the group is recognised
at fair value at the acquisition date.
Subsequent changes to the fair value of the
contingent consideration that is deemed
to be an asset or liability is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 39 in profit
or loss. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured, and
its subsequent settlement is accounted for

within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the acquisition-date
fair value of any previous equity interest
in the acquiree over the fair value of the
identifiable net assets acquired is recorded
as goodwill. If the total of consideration
transferred, non-controlling interest
recognised and previously held interest
measured is less than the fair value of the
net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the
case of a bargain purchase, the difference

is recognised directly in profit or loss.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Business combinations (Continued)
Intra-group transactions, balances
and unrealised gains on transactions
between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the transferred asset.
When necessary, amounts reported by
subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform

with the Group’s accounting policies

Changes in ownership interests in

subsidiaries without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions —
that is, as transactions with the owners in
their capacity as owners. The difference
between fair value of any consideration
paid and the relevant share acquired of
the carrying value of net assets of the
subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains
or losses on disposals to non-controlling

interests are also recorded in equity.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(c) Disposal of subsidiaries
When the Group ceases to have control,
any retained interest in the entity is re-
measured to its fair value at the date
when control is lost, with the change in
carrying amount recognised in profit or
loss. The fair value is the initial carrying
amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as
an associate, joint venture or financial
asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income
in respect of that entity are accounted for
as if the group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. This may
mean that amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income are

reclassified to profit or loss.

2.2.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at
cost less impairment. Cost also includes directly
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company

on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving
dividends from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the
subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared
or if the carrying amount of the investment in
the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets including

goodwill.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.3

Joint arrangements

The Group has applied HKFRS 11 to all joint
arrangement. Under HKFRS 11, investments in joint
arrangements are classified as either joint operations
or joint ventures depending on the contractual rights
and obligations of each investor. The Group has
assessed the nature of its joint arrangements and
determined them to be joint ventures. Joint ventures

are accounted for using the equity method.

Under the equity method of accounting, interests
in joint ventures are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of
the post-acquisition profits or losses and movements
in other comprehensive income. When the Group’s
share of losses in a joint venture equals or exceeds
its interests in the joint ventures (which includes any
long-term interests that, in substance, form part of
the Group’s net investment in the joint ventures), the
Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of

the joint ventures.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s interest in the joint ventures. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset

transferred.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.4

2.5

Segment reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner

consistent with the internal reporting provided to the

chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating

decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating

resources and assessing performance of the operating

segments, has been identified as the board of directors

that makes strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements
of each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is the Company’s
functional and the Group’s presentation
currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are remeasured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from
the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in the income
statement.

Changes in the fair value of debt securities
denominated in foreign currency classified
as available-for-sale are analysed between
translation differences resulting from changes
in the amortised cost of the security and other
changes in the carrying amount of the security.
Translation differences related to changes in the
amortised cost are recognised in profit or loss,
and other changes in the carrying amount are
recognised in equity.

Translation difference on non-monetary
financial assets and liabilities such as equities
held at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair
value gain or loss. Translation differences on
non-monetary financial assets such as equities
classified as available-for-sale are included in
the translation reserve in equity.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the
group entities that have a functional currency
different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as

follows:

(i)  assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate
at the date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average

exchange rates; and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised as a separate component of

equity.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated
as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity
and translated at the closing rate. Currency
translation differences arising are recognised in

equity.

Disposal of foreign operation and partial
disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is,
a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, a disposal involving loss of
joint control over a joint venture that includes a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of significant influence over an associate that
includes a foreign operation), all of the currency
translation differences accumulated in equity
in respect of that operation attributable to the
owners of the Company are reclassified to profit

or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

2.6

(d) Disposal of foreign operation and partial

disposal (Continued)

In the case of a partial disposal that does
not result in the Group losing control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, the
proportionate share of accumulated currency
translation differences are re-attributed to non-
controlling interests and are not recognised in
profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (that
is, reductions in the Group’s ownership interests
in associates or joint ventures entities that do not
result in the Group losing significant influence
or joint control), the proportionate share of the
accumulated exchange difference is reclassified

to profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less depreciation and impairment losses.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly

attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part
is derecognised. All other repair and maintenance
costs are charged in the income statement during the

financial period in which they are incurred.
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.6

2.7

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
cost to their residual values, where appropriate, over

their estimated useful lives at the following annual

rates:

Buildings 2.5% - 5%

Medium-term leasehold Over the terms of
factory premises the lease

Machinery and equipment 15% — 20%

Leasehold improvements, The shorter of the

furniture and fixtures terms of the lease or

15% — 20%
Motor vehicles 15% — 25%
Moulds 50%

No depreciation is provided on freehold land.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period. An asset’s carrying amount is
written down immediately to its recoverable amount
if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its

estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.10).

Gains and losses on disposal are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are

recognised in the income statement.

Land use rights

The up-front prepayments made for land use rights are
accounted for as operating leases. They are expensed
in the income statement on a straight-line basis over
the period of the lease, or when there is impairment,

the impairment is expensed in the income statement.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.8 Intangible assets

(a)

(b)

Technical know-how

Technical know-how is shown at historical cost.
Technical know-how has a finite useful life and
is carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and provision for impairment. Amortisation
is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate the cost of technical know-how net
of provision over its estimated useful life of 7

years.

Internally generated product development cost

Cost incurred on development projects (relating
to the design and testing of new or improved
products) are recognised as intangible assets

when the following criteria are fulfilled:

(i) it is technically feasible to complete the
development projects so that it will be

available for use or sale;

(i) management intends to complete the

development projects and use or sell it;

(iii) there is an ability to use or sell the

intangible asset;

(iv) it can be demonstrated how the intangible
asset will generate probable future

economic benefits;

(v) adequate technical, financial or other
resources to complete the development
and to use or sell the intangible asset are

available; and

(vi) the expenditure attributable to the
development projects during its

development can be reliably measured.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.8

2.9

Intangible assets (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Internally generated product development cost
(Continued)

Other development expenditures that do not
meet these criteria are recognised as an expense
as incurred. Development costs previously
recognised as an expense are not recognised
as an asset in a subsequent period. Capitalised
development costs net of provision for
impairment are recorded as intangible assets
and amortised from the point at which the asset
is ready for use on a straight-line basis over its

estimated useful life.

Computer software

Computer software is shown at historical cost.
Computer software has a finite useful life and
is carried at cost less accumulated amortisation.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate the cost of computer software

over its estimated useful life of 5 years.

Club membership and debentures

Club membership and debentures are with indefinite

useful lives, and are stated at cost less impairment, if

any.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.10 Impairment of investments in subsidiaries, joint

ventures and other non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not
subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest level for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating
units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible

reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
and joint ventures is required upon receiving
dividends from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the
subsidiary or joint venture in the period the dividend
is declared or if the carrying amount of the investment
in the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets including

goodwill.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.11 Financial assets

2.11.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the

following categories: at fair value through profit

or loss, loans and receivables and available-for-

sale. The classification depends on the purpose

for which the financial assets were acquired.

Management determines the classification of its

financial assets at initial recognition.

(a)

(b)

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are financial assets held for
trading. A financial asset is classified in
this category if acquired principally for
the purpose of selling in the short term.
Derivatives are also categorised as held
for trading unless they are designated
as hedges. Assets in this category are
classified as current assets if expected to
be settled within 12 months; otherwise,

they are classified as non-current.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current
assets, except for maturities greater than
12 months after the end of reporting
period. These are classified as non-current
assets. The Group’s loans and receivables
comprise ‘deposits’, ‘trade and other
receivables’, ‘cash and cash equivalents’
and ‘short-term time deposits’ in the

balance sheet.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.11 Financial assets (Continued)

2.11.1 Classification (Continued)

(c)  Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated in
this category or not classified in any of the
other categories. They are included in non-
current assets unless management intends
to dispose of the investment within 12

months of the end of reporting period.

2.11.2 Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date — the date
on which the Group commits to purchase or sell
the asset. Investments are initially recognised at
fair value plus transaction costs for all financial
assets not carried at fair value through profit
or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value
through profit or loss are initially recognised at
fair value, and transaction costs are expensed
in the income statement. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the investments have expired
or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards
of ownership. Listed investment in equity
security classified as available-for-sale financial
assets and financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair
value. As unlisted equity securities classified as
available-for-sale financial assets do not have
quoted market prices, their fair values cannot
be reliably assessed and are stated at cost.
Loans and receivables are subsequently carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.11 Financial assets (Continued)

2.11.2 Recognition and measurement (Continued)

Gains or losses arising from changes in the
fair value of the ‘financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss’ category are presented in
the income statement in the period in which they
arise. Dividend income from financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss is recognised
in the income statement as part of other income
when the Group’s right to receive payments
is established. Changes in the fair value of
monetary and non-monetary securities classified
as available-for-sale are recognised in other

comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available-for-sale
are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value
adjustments recognised in equity are included
in the income statement. Interest on available-
for-sale securities calculated using the effective
interest method is recognised in the income
statement. Dividends on available-for-sale
equity instruments are recognised in the income
statement when the Group’s right to receive

payments is established.

2.11.3 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the
net amount reported in the balance sheet when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on
future events and must be enforceable in the
normal course of business and in the event
of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the

company or the counterparty.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.12 Impairment of financial assets

(a)

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or group of financial assets
is impaired. A financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired and impairment
losses are incurred only if there is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and
that loss event (or events) has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
or group of financial assets that can be reliably

estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications
that the debtors or a group of debtors is
experiencing significant financial difficulty,
default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, and
where observable data indicate that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows, such as changes in arrears or economic

conditions that correlate with defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount
of the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount
of the asset is reduced and the amount of the
loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement. If a loan has a variable interest rate,
the discount rate for measuring any impairment
loss is the current effective interest rate
determined under the contract. As a practical
expedient, the Group may measure impairment
on the basis of an instrument’s fair value using

an observable market price.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.12 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(a) Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the
reversal of the previously recognised impairment

loss is recognised in the consolidated income

statement.

(b) Assets classified as available-for-sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of financial assets
is impaired. For debt securities, the Group uses
the criteria refer to (a) above. In the case of
equity investments classified as available-for-
sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of the security below its cost is also
evidence that the assets are impaired. If any such
evidence exists for available-for-sale financial
assets, the cumulative loss — measured as the
difference between the acquisition cost and
the current fair value, less any impairment loss
on that financial asset previously recognised
in profit or loss — is removed from equity
and recognised in profit or loss. Impairment
losses recognised in the consolidated income
statement on equity instruments are not reversed
through the consolidated income statement.
If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of
a debt instrument classified as available-
for-sale increases and the increase can be
objectively related to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised in profit or

loss, the impairment loss is reversed through the

consolidated income statement.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.13

2.14

2.15

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on
the date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently measured at their fair value. The method
of recognising the resulting gain or loss depends
on whether the derivative is designed as a hedging
instrument, and if so, the nature of item being hedged.
Derivative instruments held by the Group do not
qualify for hedge accounting and are accounted for at
fair value through profit or loss. Changes in fair value
of these derivative instruments that do not qualify for
hedge accounting are recognised immediately in the

income statement.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using the
weighted average method. The cost of finished goods
and work-in-progress comprises materials, direct
labour, other direct costs and related production
overheads (based on normal operating capacity). It
excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of

business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers
for merchandise sold or services performed in the
ordinary course of business. If collection of trade and
other receivables is expected in one year or less (or in
the normal operating cycle of the business if longer),
they are classified as current assets. If not, they are

presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially
at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less provision

for impairment.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.16

2.17

2.18

2.19

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand,
deposits held at call with banks, other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities
of three months or less, and bank overdrafts. Bank
overdrafts are shown as current liabilities in the

balance sheet.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a

deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Accounts payable are
classified as current liabilities if payment is due within
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of
the business if longer). If not, they are presented as

non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the

effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently stated at amortised cost; any difference
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and
the redemption value is recognised in the income
statement over the period of the borrowings using the

effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after

the end of the reporting period.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.20

2.21

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are

substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the

borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or

loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current
and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income
statement, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity,

respectively.

(a) Current income tax
The current income tax charge is calculated
on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of reporting
period in the countries where the Company and
its subsidiaries operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation
is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis
of amounts expected to be paid to the tax

authorities.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.21 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. However,
deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they
arise from the initial recognition of goodwill,
the deferred income tax is not accounted for if
it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss. Deferred income tax is determined using
tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date
and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the

deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised
only to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the

temporary differences can be utilised.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.21 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided
on taxable temporary differences arising
from investments in subsidiaries and joint
arrangements, except for deferred income tax
liability where the timing of the reversal of
the temporary difference is controlled by the
group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Generally the group is unable to control
the reversal of the temporary difference for
associates. Only when there is an agreement in
place that gives the group the ability to control
the reversal of the temporary difference in the
foreseeable future, deferred tax liability in
relation to taxable temporary differences arising
from the associate’s undistributed profits is not

recognised.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on
deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries, associates and
joint arrangements only to the extent that it is
probable the temporary difference will reverse
in the future and there is sufficient taxable profit
available against which the temporary difference

can be utilised.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.21 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(¢) Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
offset when there is a legally enforceable right
to offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred income tax
assets and liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either
the taxable entity or different taxable entities

where there is an intention to settle the balances

on a net basis.

2.22 Employee benefits

The Group operates various post-employment

schemes, including both defined benefit and defined

contribution pension plans.

(a) Pension obligations

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan
under which the Group pays fixed contributions
into a separate entity. The Group has no legal
or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient
assets to pay all employees the benefits relating
to employee service in the current and prior

periods. A defined benefit plan is a pension plan

that is not a defined contribution plan.

Typically defined benefit plans define an
amount of pension benefit that an employee will
receive on retirement, usually dependent on one

or more factors such as age, years of service and

compensation.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.22 Employee benefits (Continued)

(a)

Pension obligations (Continued)

The liability recognised in the balance sheet in
respect of defined benefit pension plans is the
present value of the defined benefit obligation at
the end of the reporting period less the fair value
of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation
is calculated annually by independent actuaries
using the projected unit credit method. The
present value of the defined benefit obligation
is determined by discounting the estimated
future cash outflows using interest rates of high-
quality corporate bonds that are denominated in
the currency in which the benefits will be paid,
and that have terms to maturity approximating
to the terms of the related pension obligation. In
countries where there is no deep market in such
bonds, the market rates on government bonds are

used.

The current service cost of the defined benefit
plan, recognised in the income statement
in employee benefit expense, except where
included in the cost of an asset, reflects the
increase in the defined benefit obligation results
from employee service in the current year,

benefit changes, curtailments and settlements.

Past-service costs are recognised immediately in

the income statement.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying
the discount rate to the net balance of the
defined benefit obligation and the fair value of
plan assets. This cost is included in employee

benefit expense in the income statement.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.22 Employee benefits (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Pension obligations (Continued)

Actuarial gains and losses arising from
experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are charged or credited to equity
in other comprehensive income in the period in

which they arise.

For defined contribution plans, the Group
pays contributions to publicly or privately
administered pension insurance plans on a
mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis.
The Group has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the
extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the

future payments is available.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-
based compensation plan, under which the
entity receives services from employees as
consideration for equity instruments (options)
of the Group. The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of
the options is recognised as an expense. The
total amount to be expensed is determined

by reference to the fair value of the options

granted:

. including any market performance
conditions;

. excluding the impact of any service

and non-market performance vesting

conditions; and

. including the impact of any non-vesting

conditions.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.22 Employee benefits (Continued)

(b)  Share-based compensation (Continued)
Non-market vesting conditions are included
in assumptions about the number of options
that are expected to vest. The total expense is
recognised over the vesting period, which is the
period over which all of the specified vesting
conditions are to be satisfied. At the end of each
reporting period, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of options that are expected to
vest. It recognises the impact of the revision
of original estimates, if any, in the income
statement, with a corresponding adjustment to

equity.

The cash subscribed for the shares issued when
the options are exercised is credited to share
capital (nominal value) and share premium, net

of any directly attributable transaction costs.

2.23 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not

recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of
obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even
if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one
item included in the same class of obligations may be

small.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.23

2.24

Provisions (Continued)

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as

interest expense.

The Group records warranty provision at the time
of sale for the estimated costs that will be incurred
under its basic limited warranty. The specific warranty
terms and conditions vary depending upon the product
and the country in which it was sold, but generally
includes technical support, repair parts and labour
associated with warranty repair and service actions.
The period ranges from one to three years. The Group
re-evaluates its estimates at the end of each reporting
period to assess the adequacy of its recorded warranty

liabilities and adjusts the amounts as necessary.

Revenue and income recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the sale
of goods and services in the ordinary course of the
Group’s activities. Revenue is shown, net of value-
added tax, returns, rebates and discounts and after

eliminating sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount
of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable
that future economic benefits will flow to the entity
and specific criteria have been met for each of the
Group’s activities as described below. The Group
bases its estimates on historical results, taking into
consideration the type of customer, the type of

transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.24 Revenue and income recognition (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

)

Sales of goods

Sales of goods are recognised when a group
entity has delivered products to the customer,
the customer has accepted the products and
collectability of the related receivables is

reasonably assured.

Commission income
Commission income is recognised on an accrual
basis in accordance with the substance of

relevant agreements.

Service fee income
Service fee income is recognised when the

respective services are rendered.

Ticketing and touring income

Income from tour and travel services and other
travel related services are recognised when the
services are rendered. Revenue from the sale of
air tickets are recognised when the tickets are

delivered.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised using the effective

interest method.

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to

receive payment is established.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.25 Leases

(a)

(b)

Operating lease

Leases in which a significant portion of the
risks and rewards of ownership are retained
by the lessor are classified as operating leases.
Payments made under operating leases (net of
any incentives received from the lessor) are
charged to the income statement on a straight-

line basis over the period of the lease.

Finance lease

Leases of assets where the Group has
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as finance leases.
Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s
commencement at the lower of the fair value
of the leased asset and the present value of the
minimum lease payments. Each lease payment
is allocated between the liability and finance
charges so as to achieve a constant rate on the
finance balance outstanding. The corresponding
rental obligations, net of finance charges, are
included in other short-term and other long-term
payables. The interest element of the finance
cost is charged to the income statement over the
lease period so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability for each period. The property, plant
and equipment acquired under finance leases is
depreciated over the shorter of the useful life of

the asset and the lease term.
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.26

2.27

Financial guarantees

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that
required the Group to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payments when due,
in accordance with the terms of a debt instruments.
Provisions are recognised when it is probable that
the Group has obligations under such guarantees and
an outflow of economic resources will be required to

settle the obligations.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the
Company’s financial statements in the period in
which the dividends are approved by the Company’s

shareholders or directors, when appropriate.

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including foreign
exchange risk, fair value and cash flow interest rate
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s
overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance. The Group uses derivative
financial instruments to hedge its risk exposures
on changes in foreign currency exchange rates and

interest rates where necessary.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a)

Market risk

Foreign exchange risk

As most of the Group’s sales in the trading
segment are conducted in the same currency as
the corresponding purchase transactions, and
foreign exchange contracts are used to hedge
exposures where necessary, the monetary assets
and liabilities of the Group were substantially
hedged against each other and therefore, no
significant foreign exchange risk exposure is
identified. Sales in the manufacturing segment
are mainly denominated in United States dollar
(“USD”) and Hong Kong dollar (“HK$”) and
therefore, no significant foreign exchange
risk exposure is identified on these sales
transactions. As the Group’s manufacturing
base is located in the PRC, certain purchases
and expenses are denominated in Renminbi
(“RMB”). The Group has entered into foreign
exchange contracts to hedge part of the exposure

arising from RMB.

At 31 December 2015, if the RMB had
strengthened/weakened by 5% (2014: 5%)
against the HK$, with all the other variables
held constant, profit for the year would have
been HK$15,430,000 (2014: HK$13,884,000)
higher/lower mainly as a result of the net foreign
exchange gain/(loss) on RMB denominated bank
balances, trade receivables and trade payables
excluding the impact of the foreign exchange

contracts.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Market risk (Continued)

Interest rate risk

Except for the cash and time deposits held
at banks, the Group has no significant
interest-bearing assets. The Group’s income
and operating cash flows are substantially

independent of changes in market interest rates.

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from
borrowings. The Group is exposed to cash flow
interest rate risk in relation to variable-rate bank
borrowings (Note 29). At 31 December 2015, if
interest rates on borrowings had been 25 basis
points (2014: 25 basis points) higher/lower with
all other variables held constant, profit for the
year would have been HK$1,256,000 (2014:
HK$1,726,000) lower/higher, mainly as a result
of higher/lower interest expense on floating rate

borrowings.

Credit risk
The credit risk of the Group mainly arises from
trade and other receivables and deposits with

banks and financial institutions.

In order to minimise the credit risk, management
has implemented internal control procedures for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals
and other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. The Group generally requires customers
to pay a certain amount of deposits when orders
are made. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual trade
receivables at the end of each reporting period
to ensure that adequate allowance on impairment

losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)
As at 31 December 2015, 49% (2014: 43%) of
the Group’s total trade receivables comprises

receivables from the top five customers.

The Group manages its credit risk by dealing
with credit worthy customers. Credit risk is
managed by a credit evaluation process which
includes assessment and evaluation of existing
and potential customers. In addition, for certain
export trades, the Group obtains provision of
insurance protection against non-payment risks
arising from commercial and political event
through purchasing insurance from Hong Kong

Export Credit Insurance Corporation.

For trading business, to reduce the Group’s
exposure to credit risk, the Group may request
90% deposits and immediate payment from
certain of their customers upon delivery of

equipment.

The Group believes that adequate provision
for doubtful debts has been made in the
consolidated financial statements. To the extent
that information is available, management has
properly reflected revised estimates of expected

future cashflows in their impairment assessment.

The Group has placed its cash within reputable
banks in Hong Kong, Mainland China and
Taiwan. Management does not expect any losses

arising from non-performance by these banks.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk

To manage the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and
cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation
of bank borrowings and ensures compliance with

loan covenants.

Currently, the Group finances its working
capital requirements through a combination
of funds generated from operations and bank
borrowings. As at 31 December 2015, the
Group has available unutilised banking facilities
of approximately HK$2,451,681,000 (2014:
HK$2,672,407,000).

The following table details the Group’s
remaining contractual maturity for its financial
liabilities. For non-derivative financial
liabilities, the table has been drawn up based
on the contractual undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on
which the Group is required to pay. The table

includes both interest and principal cash flows.
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 MBREEEEM (E)

(CONTINUED)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 WEEBEEER ()
(c)  Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) mEEw/E b ()
Within
1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years Total
—HER — B4 MELSE it

HK$7000  HK$°000  HK$'000  HKS$ 000
ETT wWT BWTx W TR

At 31 December 2015 R —F—HFE T+ =+—H
Trade, bills and other payables

B 00 ME TR~ B Aot S48 LA M A5 B 870,944 - - 870,944

Bank borrowings (including interest)

BT (R FE) 508,483 - - 508,483

Obligations under finance leases (including interest)

T B RS (RAERIE) 4 4 16 24

Derivative financial instruments

fEemTR 23 - - 23
1,379,454 4 16 1,379,474

At 31 December 2014 R ZF—FE+ - =+—H
Trade, bills and other payables

B0 ME TR~ B Aot S48 LA M A5 B 3K 879,370 - - 879,370
Bank borrowings (including interest)

BT (5 FE) 699,243 - - 699,243
Obligations under finance leases (including interest)

T B RS (RAERE) 1,000 - - 1,000
Derivative financial instruments

fEemTR 816 - - 816

1,580,429 - 1,580,429
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.2

Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard its ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for the Company’s
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost

of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new

shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the net
gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt
divided by total equity. Net debt is calculated as
total borrowings (including current and non-current
borrowings as shown in the consolidated balance
sheet) less short-term time deposits and cash and bank

balances.

The net gearing ratio at year end is as follows:
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2015 2014
“E-hE Y4
HK$’ 000 HKS$’ 000
BT T o
Total borrowings (Notes 29 and 30)

15 B AR (B 5129 530) 502,520 690,238

Less: bank balances and cash (Note 25)
W ERAT A B Bl (B EE2S) 401,209 381,784
Net debt fE 75 15 41 101,311 308,454
Total equity /B HE 48 % 1,581,676 1,568,002
Total capital & A< 44 %H 1,682,987 1,876,456
Gearing ratio & A% £ fif lb % 6.4% 19.7%
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.3

Fair value estimation

The carrying value less impairment provision of trade
receivables and payables are assumed to approximate
their fair values. The fair value of financial liabilities
for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting
the future contractual cash flows at the current market
interest rate that is available to the Group for similar

financial instruments.

The financial instruments measured at fair value are

disclosed by the following measurement hierarchy:

. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for

identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

. Inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or

indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

. Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (that is, unobservable

inputs) (level 3).

The financial instruments that are measured at fair
value as at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014

(Note 24) are classified under level 2.

There were no transfers between levels 1 and 2 during

the year.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market (for example, over-the-
counter derivatives) is determined by using valuation
techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the
use of observable market data where it is available and
rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates.
If all significant inputs required to fair value an
instrument are observable, the instrument is included

in level 2.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)
If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the instrument is included in

level 3.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial

instruments include:

. Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for

similar instruments.

. The fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated
as the present value of the estimated future cash

flows based on observable yield curves.

. The fair value of forward foreign exchange
contracts is determined using forward exchange
rates at the balance sheet date, with the resulting

value discounted back to present value.

. Other techniques, such as discounted cash flow
analysis, are used to determine fair value for the

remaining financial instruments.

All the resulting fair value estimates of the Group’s
forward foreign currency contracts are included in

level 2.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be

reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are

discussed below.
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4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

(¢

Estimated impairment loss on trade receivables

The accounting policy for allowance of bad and
doubtful debts of the Group is based on the evaluation
of collectability and ageing analysis of accounts
and on management’s judgement. A considerable
amount of judgement is required in assessing the
ultimate realisation of these receivables, including
the current creditworthiness and the past collection
history of each customer. If the financial conditions of
customers of the Group were to deteriorate, resulting
in impairment of their ability to make payments,

additional allowances may be required.

Allowances for inventories

The management of the Group reviews an ageing
analysis at the end of the reporting period, and makes
allowances for obsolete and slow-moving inventory
items identified that are no longer suitable for sales.
The management estimates the net realisable value
for such finished goods based primarily on the latest
invoice prices and current market conditions. The
Group carries out an inventory review on a product-
by-product basis at the end of the reporting period and

makes allowance for obsolete items.

Income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There
are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during
the ordinary course of business. Where the final tax
outcome is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the
income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in

which such determination is made.

4
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(¢) Income tax (Continued)
Recognition of deferred tax assets, which principally
relates to tax losses, depends on the management’s
expectation of future taxable profit that will be
available against which the tax losses can be utilised.
The outcome of their actual utilisation may be

different.

REVENUE

Revenue represents the amounts received and receivable
for goods sold and services provided by the Group to
external customers, net of returns, allowances, discounts and
sales related taxes. Revenue recognised during the year is

analysed as follows:

4

K & wH R RO B (A7)

(c) PrigBt (4)
0 T B TEE R N TR R W B
TH 18 > 0O A B 3T R
5 85 AT B A B JE i 4R 2 H AR ZH R
Biiis M 2 A o R% S5 BSR4
R 2 o

W ik

W gt 4 AS 4 T 1) SRS B B R AR
3 A 5 T A T B B AU 2 R (4T BR R
B 8 i REE A RIBUR) © 4R
C i sd i i < 2 BT an F

2015 2014

- Sl 7 SRR

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

W T BT T

Sales of goods &% 1 4,844,946 5,707,737
Commission income 1l 4 U %% 26,978 22,623
Service fee income AR %5 22 1 %5 47,889 46,225
Ticketing and touring income %% %5 M Jif¢ 7 U% #2 917 1,159
Others H At 840 313

4,921,570 5,778,057




SEGMENT INFORMATION 6 SEER

The Chief Operation Decision-Maker (“CODM”) has FEEEPORE ([ FEEERRE ) &
been identified as directors of the Company. The CODM WRBARNFEE o FEEBILT LK
reviews the Group’s internal reporting in order to assess B AAE [ 2 Rl > DA REAR 2R 8L R 4y
performance and allocate resources. It determined the B R o 5% 55 Ol R E AR R AR
operating segments based on these reports. The Group is 5 o AN 4 [ BEIRE 43 A T AR 4848 ik —
currently organised into two operating segments — trading S B R o AL 2 £ RS E R R A
and manufacturing. These segments are the basis on which DA IS5 oy 0 o LA o

the Group reports its principal activities information.

Trading - trading and distribution of chemicals, By - REEENRIER AR SR T b
materials and equipment used in P 2 ACER G~ Wt ek
the manufacturing of printed circuit W5 2 & T K 58 B

boards and electronic products

Manufacturing -  manufacturing of electrical and Wi - ERABETEMZ W
electronic products
The segment information for the year ended 31 December BEF—HETH=1—HILFEE
2015 is as follows: ZAPHRE RN
Trading Manufacturing Others  Eliminations  Consolidated
"5 3% Al i ¥y
HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000

i o i o g T i

Revenue 1 %

External sales 785 & 40 1,623,299 3,164,090 134,181 - 4,921,570
Inter-segment sales 73 /% # & % 172,359 2,770 13,385 (188,514) -
Total 8% 1,795,658 3,166,860 147,566 (188,514) 4,921,570
Results ¥ 4%

Segment results 737 44 49,698 60,977 (22,754) 778 88,699
Finance income fill &1l A 2,821 484 3,707 - 7,012
Finance costs [ & A< (617) (8,100) (155) - (8,872)

51,902 53,361 (19,202) 718 86,839

Share of profit of a joint venture
PG — 1 & 8 2 ) 2 i 21
Write-back of allowance for

doubtful debt on amount

due from a joint venture
TE i — ) 8 A A AR 2

IR M 1B £ 93¢ o 44
Profit before income tax [ It 75 i il i 1 87,104
Income tax expense 7 {58 3 ih (30,034)

Profit for the year 7% 4F- [ i F| 57,070



6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6 EBER (AE)

The segment information for the year ended 31 December HE F-WE+ H=4+—HILEE
2014 is as follows: ZOrHE RN

Trading ~ Manufacturing Others Eliminations Consolidated

H i HAth iR e

HK$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000

T R T T BT T

Revenue ' £5

External sales 518 & 48 1,656,924 4,023,141 97,992 - 5,778,057

Inter-segment sales 73 (X 4 5 %4 278,928 2,806 15,116 (296,850) -

Total 8% 1,935,852 4,025,947 113,108 (296,850) 5,778,057

Results ¥ &

Segment results 7 # 3 4% 59,751 67,959 (20,452) (1,256) 106,002

Finance income fil & It A 3,259 5,343 3,334 - 11,936

Finance costs [ & i A< (604) (13,274) (128) - (14,006)
62,406 60,028 (17,246) (1,256) 103,932

Share of loss of a joint venture
Fi s — W 8 Wl 2 s 4 (658)
Provision for allowance for doubtful debt

on amount due from a joint venture

REs— M5 B A O Z

PN S (44)
Profit before income tax [5 T 15 4 il It 1 103,230
Income tax expense Ff {7 i (30,159)

Profit for the year 7% 4F [ it £ 73,071



6

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6 SR E R (7))
The segment assets and liabilities at 31 December 2015 are AT E—FHE+ - H=Z+—HZHHE
as follows: EH AN T
Trading Manufacturing Others Consolidated
5 Bk H iy A
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
wH T wH T W T W T
Assets &
Segment assets 73 b & /& 908,681 1,825,632 240,771 2,975,084
Liabilities £1 &
Segment liabilities 43 5 £ & 327,868 1,021,187 44,353 1,393,408
The segment assets and liabilities at 31 December 2014 are o FE—EF A=+ —HZ &
as follows: FEHAEEN T
Trading  Manufacturing Others Consolidated
&5 Rk HoAt LR
HK$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000
wHETor w¥Too  w¥Too wiEToo
Assets & &
Segment assets OB 897,341 1,997,329 262,544 3,157,214
Liabilities £1 &
Segment liabilities 47 #B £ & 304,005 1,233,182 52,025 1,589,212

y




6

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6 5 HE R (4E)
An analysis of the Group’s other segment information is as AR 2 Ho Al o BRI A
follows:
Trading Manufacturing Others Consolidated
"5 ik H At Ba
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
W T T W T T
For the year ended 31 December 2015
WEZE—AFET A= T—HILFE
Write-back of impairment loss on freehold
land and building
TR SER 3 2 L N 4R 1% [ (4,520) - - (4,520)
Capital expenditure
HEA 3L 14,577 29,785 3,062 47,424
Additions to intangible assets
HEEYEE 14 - - 14
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
E B VY& R 12,828 42,266 6,525 61,619
Amortisation of land use rights
o 7 AR 4 - 361 - 361
Impairment loss on intangible assets
Y 2 WA e 1R 4,293 - - 4,293
Amortisation of intangible assets
T 1,792 2,522 - 4,314
For the year ended 31 December 2014
WE_F—WE+H=+t—HILEE
Capital expenditure
EAB S 10,805 35,305 2,930 49,040
Gain on disposal of land and building
it ST 2 i ds (23,682) - - (23,682)
Additions to intangible assets
B Y E 9 12,610 - 12,619
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
WIS ~ R B S T 12,835 37,084 6,970 56,889
Amortisation of land use rights
o b o ) HEE 48 - 360 - 360
Amortisation of intangible assets
TV 1,792 2,522 - 4,314




6

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6
Analysis of the Group’s revenue by geographical market is

as follows:

o1 5 & RL (A7)

7S ] 2 i [ T 85 B 2 Wi o A AN R

2015 2014
R A R A

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

b3 T T

North America 3t 3% M 1,146,108 1,617,274
Europe Kk 1,454,208 1,678,526
Hong Kong, Mainland China and Taiwan 7 #& ~ 7 B (A 3b ) & 185 1,977,227 2,125,646
Others H i 344,027 356,611
4,921,570 5,778,057

The total non-current assets other than intangible
assets and deferred tax assets located in Hong Kong,
Mainland China and other countries are HK$77,124,000
(2014: HK$84,006,000), HK$507,894,000 (2014:
HK$496,205,000) and HK$46,625,000 (2014:
HK$68,307,000), respectively.

P 7~ rf B R R A R 2 JE
T E A ORBLRS E O B R
Bl TE A BE) 4 A By s H577,124,00000
(= F — U4 : ¥ %84,006,0007C) ~
7 507,894,00070 (& — PUAF @ i ¥
496,205,0007C) K # #46,625,0007C (—
ZF— U4 ¢ #%68,307,00000) °

OTHER GAINS 7 HibWik
2015 2014
“E N e S s
HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000
W T T T
Dividends from available-for-sale financial assets
T A R 509 293
Government subsidies (Note)
R A H (B ) 5,744 -
6,253 293

Note: It represents subsidy received from certain PRC local
government authorities.

BESE - AR T o Ty B A B B i

il o



OPERATING PROFIT 8 RaEuEA
Operating profit is stated after charging/(crediting) the B A TR (REA) R A& TR
following: BB -
2015 2014
N e TS ZE YA
HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000
BT T oo
Auditors’ remuneration: % $ i £ ¢
— Audit services % It 5 2,500 2,733
— Non-audit services JF 2§ %l %5 588 542
Net (write-back of)/provision for impairment loss on trade
and other receivables
B 5y T A MR USRS 2 R (L s 1 (AR B 1)) 3 A 1 A (594) 7,295
Allowance for/(write-back of) obsolescence of inventories
BB A7 B (B ) 530 (2,544)
Operating lease rentals in respect of land and buildings
+ o BT 2 A A R 15,073 14,860
Net foreign exchange losses
HE 51 s 18 4+ 14,729 4,461
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment,
other than land and building
MY B L (R EAE  ET) 2 kR () 99 (177)
Net fair value (gains)/losses on derivative financial instruments
ATAE Gl TR 2 AP OfaR) e 1805 3 (2,069) 3,682
EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING 9 [EH®EHMP X (AFEEHEME)
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)
2015 2014
“E N e S ues
HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000
W T T T
Salaries, wages, commission and allowances e LE - e KRy 622,506 654,680
Pension costs — contributions to defined contribution plans (Note (a))
IBAR  BAS — 1) B I AR 3R (Mt Ga)) 9,679 9,530
Pension costs — contribution to defined benefit plans (Note 31)
B AR B AR — 1) B E A R w4 KR RE3 D) 415 435
Social security costs
L PR B A 45,003 36,814
677,603 701,459




9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) (CONTINUED)

(a)

Where there are employees who leave the defined
contribution plans prior to vesting fully in the
contributions, the contributions payable by the Group
are reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions.
There were no forfeited contributions utilised in this

manner during the year (2014: Nil).

At the end of the reporting period, there are no
significant forfeited contributions, which arose upon
employees leaving the retirement schemes and which
are available to reduce the contributions payable by

the Group in future years.

The total employer’s contribution to the above
retirement schemes and other local arrangement
charged to the consolidated income statement, net of
forfeited contributions, amounted to approximately
HK$9,679,000 (2014: HK$9,530,000).

9

D B A B S (B9 S 3 ) (A7)
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ik I B 7E {3t 3K 2 Sl Jo iR b e
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10 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURE REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE
OF INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND
HONG KONG LISTING RULES)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
The remuneration of every director and the chief
executive for the year ended 31 December 2015 is set

out below:

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s

services as a director, whether of the Company or its

subsidiary undertaking:

Discretionary

bonuses Housing

Fees Salaries (note) allowance
Mttt

s fid (W) RN

HKSO00  HESON0  HKS000  HKS'000
BT BT ERTx #ETx

10 % 350 25 K% HE 25 (R 0% 75 o (2 W)
Bl (356223) SE383M ~ (A W] (B
7 2R E R B (58622G %)
B A s bl B 22 B B #R )

(a) EFEREFELTHABZHE
WEE T -hFEt+ A=+
HIEFE S A E S R EATEHA
Bz #HmM#E s

T F A % ) L Y Ja 3 W 2 T
i £ A R B 2 A - 4 A sl i
Z 4%

Emoluments

paid or

receivable in

respect of

director’s

other services

Remunerations  in connection

paid or with the

Employer’s  receivablein  management of

Estimated ~ contribution to respect of the affairs of the

money value  a refirement accepting  Company or its

of other benefit officeas  subsidiaries
henefits scheme director  undertaking Total

REHRN

SRR

HEAEE RIREATZ

PR FHARZL

Lewz  RikkAa CEN WO
[HEREE  2BEME  KEMZHEM REheme it
HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS$000 HKS$ 000 HKS$'000
e T e T T

Eneautive direcors: H7E%

Senta Wong T4 181 8456 1401 99% - 386 - - 11420
Edward Ying Chun Tsui fRfE % 181 4855 1037 - - "W - - 6315
Byron Shu Chan Ho fi 14 181 4437 1002 - - 0l - - 5841
Bengie Man Hang Kwong B8 120 441 1235 - - mn - - 5,808
Hamed Hassan EI-ABD 120 2979 266 360 - 142 - - 3,867
Non-exccutive directors: 3 /7% %
Andrew Sheu, Hsu Hung Chich 7% ¢ 218 78 54 - - 9 - - 1,606
Leung Kam Fong 4 120 - - - - - - - 120
Independent non-executive directors:
BufiiEs:
Yip Wai Chun 415 120 60 - - - - - - 180
John Ho 148 120 60 - - - - - - 180
Philip Wan Chung Tse &7 1 120 60 - - - - - - 180
Gene Howard Weiner 120 - - - - - - - 120
1601 25931 5484 135 - 1265 - - 35637




10 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 10
(DISCLOSURE REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE
OF INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND
HONG KONG LISTING RULES) (CONTINUED)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(Continued)

The remuneration of every director and the chief
executive for the year ended 31 December 2014 is set
out below:

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s
services as a director, whether of the Company or its
subsidiary undertaking:

Discretionary

bonuses Housing

Fees Salaries (note) allowance
i 1%

i3 kit (B3t RERE i

HKS 0 KGO0 HKSO HRS 000
BT BRTL BRTR ENTR

R R HE S (BB A5 98 (O Rl
Bl (356223) SE383M ~ (A W] (B
7 2R E R B (58622G %)
KA bl B 2 B iR ) ()

(a)

Estimated
money value
of other
benefits

ElbRiL
QR
HKS 000
BT

EHRRERGTEARBZME )

W E - Z—WE A = —
H o1k 4F B g 4 9 e F AT A
BZ B R

1 J A % ) oL Y Je s w2 BB
i 2 A R B 2 A - O 4 A sl i
Z 4

Emoluments

paid or

receivable in

respect of

director’s

other services

Remunerations ~in connection

paid or with the

Employer's ~ receivablein  management of

contribution to respect of  the affairs of the

aretirement accepting  Company or its

benefit office as subsidiaries
scheme director undertaking Total

RERRY

AERAL

REAEE AANBLAL

EERE SHARZAN

BIRAGHE  moEE  REmCER
Rl BlEM SRl it
HKSO0  HKSO0 HKSO0 HKS 00
EhEE BN T EET

Eneautive direcors: 785

Senta Wong T . 182 8,122 1592 996 - 30 - - 11262
Edward Ying Chun Tsui 7167 182 4,668 1200 - - m - - 6,83
Byron Shu Chan Ho fi B4 182 466 1,167 - - 213 - - 5828
Bengie Man Hang Kwong & 5 120 4078 1367 - - 204 - - 5769
Hamed Hassan EI-ABD 120 2,856 256 360 - 136 - - 37128
Non-exccutive directors: 3 /7% ©
Andrew Shev, Hsu Hung Chich 717 i m 815 528 - - 65 - - 1,630
Leung Kam Fong 24575 120 - - - - - - - 120
Independent non-executive directors:
Bitiifes:
Yip Wai Chun (Note 1) E45 (Jf3k1) 120 60 - - - - - - 180
John Ho 478 120 60 - - - - - - 180
Philip Wan Chung Tse &% 120 0 - - - - - - 180
Gene Howard Weiner 120 - - - - - - - 120
1,608 24,985 6,110 1356 - 121 - - 35280

Note 1: Appointed on 23 January 2014

None of the directors waived any emoluments during the
years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014.

BEREL : R =% —4E—H = H
ZiE

R E AR e R AR
H=+— B0 - B8 o S
{1 48 o



10 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURE REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE
OF INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND
HONG KONG LISTING RULES) (CONTINUED)
(b) Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals in the Group were
executive directors of the Company for the years
ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 whose emoluments

were included in Note 10(a).

(¢) Directors’ retirement benefits and termination
benefits
None of the directors received or will receive any
retirement benefits or termination benefits in respect
of their services to the Company and its subsidiaries
for the year (2014: Nil).

(d) Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services
During the year, the Company has not paid any
consideration to any third parties for making available

directors’ services to the Company (2014: Nil).

(e) Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors
There were no loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings entered into by the Company or subsidiary
undertaking of the Company, where applicable, in
favour of the directors, or body corporate controlled
by or entities connected with any of the directors at
the end of the year or at any time during the year
(2014: Nil).

10

R R HE S (BB A5 98 (O Rl
Bl (356223) SE383M ~ (A W] (B
7 2R E R B (58622G %)
KA bl B 2 B iR ) ()

(b) HAEREHMAL
REMBE _F—HFER TN
FtH A=t —HIEEEZTA
B i PN b 2 AR Y W AT
o A 2 B PR B RE10(a)

(c) 3 Z 08 P A B il e A i

SRR MR EE S0 1) AN ) B
WY Ja 2 ) 2 4 e 5 T 2 i B
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10 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURE REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE

OF INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND
HONG KONG LISTING RULES) (CONTINUED)

11

(®

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Group’s business to which
the Company was a party and in which a director of
the Company had a material interest, when directly or

indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any

10 % 350 25 K% HE 25 (R 0% 75 o (2 W)
Bl (356223) SE383M ~ (A W] (B
7 2R E R B (58622G %)
KA bl B 2 B iR ) ()

() FHERARY  REKGHPZIERX
E
JRAE&E H BAE AT R[] > A2 7]
M AR AR 2 F) 2 B RT S BLAR
EEEBAM BRI - HH R
R ORI AL S R RERTICIPN

Mg o

time during the year.

FINANCE COSTS, NET

11 AR - FHE

2015 2014
ZE A TR
HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000
BT ik
Interest income on: F] B A :
— bank deposits 1T 77 2K 6,897 11,879
— others HAth 115 57
7,012 11,936
Interest expense on: | 537t :
— bank borrowings and overdrafts $8 17 fff £ % 3¢ (8,863) (13,973)
— finance leases il &l & 9) (33)
(8,872) (14,006)
Finance costs — net il & B4 — 1§ {H (1,860) (2,070)




12

INCOME TAX EXPENSE 12 il

2015 2014
G- Sl 74 TR AR
HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000
T T
Current income tax B[l B 7 15 8t
— Hong Kong profits tax 7 #5 |15 Bl 7,326 3,680
— Other jurisdictions including PRC corporate income tax
Fofts ml AR > BLAE o 0 A SE P 15 L 20,739 20,875
28,065 24,555
(Over)/under provision in prior years 8 fE4F & (R AH M) B AL
— Hong Kong 7 ¥ (2) -
— Other jurisdictions including PRC HAth =] i & - 6145+ B 1 30
1) 30
Deferred income tax (Note 20) 7% % Jif 13 B (Fff 5120) (134) 2,434
Withholding tax on dividends paid by subsidiaries
LB JaS 2 W CUR A BB 2 B I 2,104 3,140
30,034 30,159
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at 16.5% B s FIAS BT AR 4F B 2 Ah 51 B Ui
(2014: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the ) e Bl 216.5% (& — T 4F : 16.5% )
year. The subsidiaries established in the PRC are subject SR o A B ST 2 B S T 2R R
to corporate income tax rate of 25% (2014: 25%). The 25% (. F—WH4F : 25%) Bl S B A %
subsidiaries in Taiwan are subject to corporate income FrASBL o A AR EI17% (Z%
tax rate of 17% (2014: 17%). Taxation arising in other —VU4E : 17%) Bl REA 2 7 i3 o H
jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing in the At ) 7 A T 22 6 VB 4 A B ] 9 A L

relevant jurisdictions. M2 BiFEFTHE -



12

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

The tax on the Group’s profit before income tax differs from
the theoretical amount that would arise using the tax rate
applicable in Hong Kong to profits of the group companies

as follows:

12 Pl X W (4)

A 42 8] B P 45 B0 i i ] 2 A6 T S 45 (o] i
2 ) A 4 A v R B R TR B

Bz Z=5uF :

2015 2014
—R A CE A
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
BT BT
Profit before income tax B JI7 15 B Al it F1 87,104 103,230
Tax calculated at domestic tax rate of 16.5% (2014: 16.5%)
P LB 2816.5% (& —U4E 1 16.5%) 5F A 2 BiIH 14,372 17,033
Effect of different tax rate of operations in other jurisdictions
LAt =] 32 HE I A8 45 SE B 2 R [ B R 2 5 3,049 4,163
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purposes
AT B S 2 B RS 5,460 3,318
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purposes
BB A 2 BB 3 B (2,334) (5,191
Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised
B S il R flE R 2 B IE R 1R (2,307) (1,135)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised
R e L E e 1R 2 BB S 7,610 7,391
Write-off of deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses
AL T s 15 i A0 A B T - 98
Effect of tax exemptions granted to foreign subsidiaries
it 1 Wi B8 2 W) BT L T e 2 R (10) (104)
(Over)/under provision in prior years
WA GEAEB) B R 1 30
Withholding tax on dividends paid by subsidiaries and PRC tax
0 B I 2 R 2 OR A B S 2 OB JE DA K v 12 B I 3,590 4,080
Others At 605 476
Income tax expense JIr 15 B 32 th 30,034 30,159




13 EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a)

(b)

Basic (a)
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the
profit attributable to owners of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue

during the year.

13 TRAEM

B A

B M A R T 4 A % )R i A
A AL i R BR DLAE 0 B B AT
0 T S MR B

2015 2014

—E® A S

Profit attributable to owners of the Company
(Hong Kong thousand dollars)

A FHE i £ A R AG A G T o) 47,037 66,639
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue (thousands)
C 3547 M 260 o - 3 B (T B0 746,256 739,670
Basic earnings per share (Hong Kong cents per share)
5 B AR LA (3 AL 6.30 9.01

Diluted (b)
Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting
the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding, assuming conversion of all dilutive

potential ordinary shares.

4

5 S 44 0 2 M) IS R P A
i e T R AT AR SN
B R 2 G A

2015 2014
o s e
Profit attributable to owners of the Company
(Hong Kong thousand dollars)
A FHE i A R A A G i T o) 47,037 66,639
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue (thousands)
C B 47 0 268 s o T 3% e () 746,256 739,670
Adjustments for share options (thousands) (Note)
0 SBOHE A Hh A B (T 1) (M sE) 2,598 2,705
Weighted average number of ordinary shares
for diluted earnings per share (thousands)
JA DA S 5 B 2 ) 2 0 2 o T 2 (T B0 748,854 742,375
Diluted earnings per share (Hong Kong cents per share)
5 B B A (s ) 6.28 8.98

Note: All share options have been expired as at year ended
31 December 2015

WEEE : R F - T+
= BRI
AL JE i
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DIVIDENDS 14 &S
2015 2014
e Sl 1 o P4
HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000
W Tt BT

Final dividend, proposed, of HK$0.03 (2014: HK$0.025) per share

KYIREE > S R H0.0350 (- F—H4E « #%0.0250) 22,567 18,492
The dividends paid in 2015 and 2014 were HK$18,690,000 N FE—HAER ZF—VERMNZ K

(HK$0.025 per share) and HK$14,793,000 (HK$0.02 per
share) respectively. A divided in respect of the year ended
31 December 2015 of HK$0.03 per share amounting to a
total dividend of HK$22,567,000, is to be proposed at the
annual general meeting on 22 June 2016. These consolidated

financial statements do not reflect this dividend payable.

LAND USE RIGHTS
The Group’s interests in land use rights represent prepaid
operating lease payments and their net book values are as

follows:

15

ﬁ"/”y'l/"%f%”ﬁ%‘1869000075 g i s U
0.0257G) M ik 14,793,00070 (45 A #s 1
0.027C) o RZFE—NFAH T HE
T2 B AR K& > AN A IR
BHEHE _F - T =1T—HIFE
JE 2 B S BT 0,030 > B S 4R %
A 3 02,567,0000C o M5 A F B
2 A e 7 e L TE R A L

& b £ A HE
AR B 2 (D R i 5 TR A A
BEROA - AR ET

2015 2014
—EF T4 SR

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

T BT T

At 1 January A —H —H 13,666 14,026
Amortisation &4 (361) (360)

At 31 December A - H =+—H

13,305 13,666




16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16 Y3 ~ W Bk i

Medium- Leasehold
Freehold term improve-
land and leasehold ments,
buildings factory furniture
in overseas premises Machinery  and fixtures
#5KA  inthe PRC and i Motor
EHEL WEEH  equipment  WEEE vehicles Total
R MAkRE  RERSE  KEXEE R ok
HK$’000 HKS$’ 000 HK$ 000 HKS$’ 000 HKS’ 000 HK$ 000
BT BT BT T BT T
Net book amount at 1 January 2015
RZF—0F—H—H 2R 40,972 359,704 143211 29,609 5472 578,968
Exchange translation adjustments [ 53 % (1,549) (89) (3,140) (276) (170) (5,204)
Additions 7 & 5,380 12,105 22,062 4515 3,362 47424
Disposals it} & - - (1,300) 2) (49) (1,347)
Write-back of impairment i (21 [ 4,520 - - - - 4,520
Depreciation 47 £ (1,228) (15,888) (35,899) (6,638) (1,966) (61,619)
At31 December 2015 R = F—F 4+ =+—H 48,095 355,832 124,934 27,208 6,653 562,722
At 31 December 2015 8 ~F—H4E+ A =+—H
Cost LA 57,042 508,872 575,108 140,534 27,362 1,308,918
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
R E R (8,947) (153,040) (450,174) (113,326) (20,709) (746,196)
Net book amount i I i i 48,095 355,832 124,934 27,208 6,653 562,722
Net book amount at 1 January 2014
REF—NE—R—H 2 REFE 66,911 361,429 149,166 29,823 6,178 613,507
Exchange translation adjustments [ it 4% (2,579) (26) (900) 39 (114) (3,058)
Additions 7 & 88 10,168 30,013 7,114 1,657 49,040
Disposals it} & (22,399) - (536) 0 (90) (23,032)
Transfer ¥ - - 2 (22) - -
Depreciation 7 25 (1,049) (11,867) (34,554) (7,260) (2,159) (56,889)
At31 December 2014 # ZF 4+ =+—H 40,972 359,704 143211 29,609 5472 578,968
At 31 December 2014 A = ZF—W4E+ A =+—H
Cost A 53,745 496,398 574611 139,042 26,338 1,290,634
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
S E R (12,773) (137,194) (431,400) (109,433) (20,866) (711,666)
Net book amount 1 % 40972 359,704 143211 29,609 5472 578,968
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS

17

Intangible assets represent computer software, technical

know-how acquired by the Group and internally generated

product development costs. Movements in intangible assets

during the year are as follows:

I TE S R AN B T I 2 IR
Al 60 B 1 90 E A 2 i B B AR o 4
WARTE G 2 SR

Internally
generated
product
development
costs
Computer Technical P
software know-how A4 ZEfh Total
BNk e 98 50 ERIFIN Bt
HKS$’ 000 HKS’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
L ST i T T T
Year ended 31 December 2015
#HE_F-LE+ A=+ —HILEE
Opening net book amount 47 % i ¥ (i€ 10,088 1,580 4,956 16,624
Additions 7 & - - 14 14
Amortisation # 54 (2,522) (1,115) (677) (4,314)
Impairment (Note) U (B ([ff %) - - (4,293) (4,293)
Closing net book amount H 7 ik I 1% & 7,566 465 - 8,031
At 31 December 2015 i* —Z—H4F+_-H=+—H
Cost LA 12,610 7,810 10,769 31,189
Accumulated amortisation and impairment 2 514 8§ & W (i (5,044) (7,345) (10,769) (23,158)
Net book amount i Ifi 15 {E 7,566 465 - 8,031
Year ended 31 December 2014
#WE_FE-NEF A=+ —HILERE
Opening net book amount 41 % i i (i€ - 2,695 5,624 8,319
Additions 7 & 12,610 - 9 12,619
Amortisation # 4 (2,522) (1,115) (677) (4,314)
Closing net book amount {7 A< Ff 1 5 {6 10,088 1,580 4,956 16,624
At 31 December 2014 R ZF—W4E+H =+—H
Cost LA 12,610 7.810 10,755 31,175
Accumulated amortisation and impairment 2 5t 8 & 3 (€ (2,522) (6,230) (5,799) (14,551)
Net book amount 8 iff i (& 10,088 1,580 4,956 16,624
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED) 17
Amortisation of HK$4,314,000 (2014: HK$4,314,000)

”

are included in “depreciation and amortisation ” in the

consolidated income statement.

Note: The carrying amount has been reduced to its
recoverable amount through recognition of an impairment
loss against internally generated product development
costs. The loss has been included in “other expenses” in the

consolidation income statement.

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 18
The Group holds 50% of the voting rights of its joint
ventures. The Group has joint control over these
arrangements as under the contractual agreements,
unanimous consent is required from all parties to the

agreements for all relevant activities.

The Group’s joint arrangements are structured as limited
companies and provide the Group and the parties to the
agreements with rights to the net assets of the limited
companies under the arrangements. Therefore, these entities

are classified as joint ventures of the Group.

W& (4E)

W #4,314,00000 (& — DU AE R
4,314,00070) < 4 85 6 45 75 & §F 7 M %
PAER 9 N

BF T - DR T L 95 8 e R M) O E AR 2
sty B 3 A 2 9 (L s R 1) 9 2 AT i ]
B ZEHOFIAG IR Z TH
b BA S IAT

TEAR R
AREBFFA LGB A FS50%8 ERE - &
SE EARYE A 40 Th ek B 5% 55 2 B A AL T
PETIRE > Hc— DA B VG B 35 28 W ok A e
GEOY P Eib=a

AEBEEREZHMBARAF >
S VU TR IR L Sy
HZEARAFZEEFHE - FIL - &
FHBABAAER Z GE AT -

2015 2014
R R CE AR
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
#R T BT
Share of net assets of unlisted joint ventures
FEAG T LT 8 W 2 B 226 -
Amounts due from joint ventures & it & & 28w K H 638 683
Write-back of/(provision for) allowance for doubtful
debts on amount due from a joint venture
BT — ] 5 %8 O R IE 2 R IR A 1 ) (HE ) 44 (44)
908 639

The amounts due from joint ventures are unsecured,

interest-free and are not repayable within one year.

There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s

interests in its joint ventures.

28 RV T AR G B R A

Sl 48 9 K AR B2 IR 8 A RE A 2 SR
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INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(CONTINUED)

Set out below are the joint ventures of the Group as at 31

December 2015.

18 HEAvwZis (4)

IS ) S T Sy g E Nty il £
ZALEHEGELNF -

Proportion of

nominal value

Place of of issued
incorporation/ capital held
Form of registration/ by the Group
business operation Class of A5
Name of entity structure 1LY e share held C¥ITMA  Principal activities
HRAH et JN Akl 48 5 e 0 WEEH  FEEH
Wesi Technology Limited ~ Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary 50% Semi conductor equipment
ALY A Eik il distribution
7 L
MEEHHRAT Wholly-owned foreign ~ Taiwan Contributed 50% Semi conductor equipment
enterprises fi% capital distribution
EEINERH HE I8 R
MEESARAH Wholly-owned foreign ~ PRC Contributed 50% Semi conductor equipment
enterprises i capital distribution
BEIERF i< o S R

Set out below is the summarised consolidated financial

information for Wesi Technology Limited which is

accounted for using the equity method.

T 3CH B

kAR Z Wesi

Technology Limited & fIf B4 %5 &AM EE o

Summarised consolidated balance sheet A EEAEEME
2015 2014
—E A TR
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
T iy eI
Current i B
Total current assets I B & & 24 {H 4,195 5,207
Total current liabilities (including trade payables)
TE A A (AR 5 AT R (3,766) (5,313)
Non-current JE it B
Assets & & 23 19
Net assets/(liabilities) & &, (£ &) ¥ (i 452 (87)
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INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(CONTINUED)

aEavZ s (4)

Summarised consolidated income statement A D I3 2% B 2
2015 2014
e 2 ko2 ZE A
HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000
W T T o0
Revenue I i 9,117 8,251
Profit/(loss) after income tax % Ff f98 4% i #~ (&518) 547 (1,387)

The information above reflects the amounts presented in
the financial statements of the joint ventures, adjusted for
differences in accounting policies between the Group and

the joint ventures, if any.

SUBSIDIARIES
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31
December 2015 are set out in Note 37 to the financial

statements.

Summarised financial information on subsidiary with
material non-controlling interests

Set out below is the summarised consolidated financial
information for Taiwan Kong King Co., Limited, a
subsidiary of the Company listed in Taiwan which has non-

controlling interests that are material to the Group.

19

F R RS A T MBS IR B 2
EHO WEMAEREGE AR
FRECR 22 BAR SR () -

¥t & 2 W
AXTR-F-HEFZAS A2
BB 24 L B e 737 <

i A7 T K 4 ) R R R O W) 2 B
& PR R

T SCH S B A A G T T R 2
P2 PR R 2 AS 2% R 6 1 TR JE 4
B kR B0 A R 7 2 & OF B R
W -
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SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

19

Wit J&§ 2 W) ()

Summarised consolidated balance sheet A EEAMEEMNE
2015 2014
ZE—hE R
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
T BT T
Current i B
Assets & E 220,620 210,741
Liabilities £ & (61,714) (54,152)
Total current assets and liabilities i B & & & & (& 44 (E 158,906 156,589
Non-current JE i B
Assets & 78,920 81,290
Liabilities £ fif (7,855) (8,187)
Total non-current net assets JF i B & & 487 (4 71,065 73,103
Net assets & & i 229,971 229,692




19 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 19 MWEBAW ()
Summarised consolidated income statement A BRI 3 B
2015 2014
ZE R TR
HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000
T T
Revenue U 5 226,597 236,676
Profit before income tax B i £ Bt i &5 F1 31,512 23,443
Income tax expense P 1381 3 (4,957) (4,537)
Profit for the year 7 4F Ji 15 26,555 18,906
Other comprehensive (loss)/income H At 42 & (B H) /W& (1,999) 3,582
Total comprehensive income % £ WX #5 #8 #A 24,556 22,488
Total comprehensive income allocated to non-controlling interests
43 B0 3 I ¥ o) B R 2 A A W AR AR 2,312 1,475
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests
AT T I dae ol E i e B 231 1,205
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SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 19 MWEAW (%)

Summarised consolidated cash flows A OF Bl 4 U =
2015 2014
- Sl T e K
HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000
BT T T
Cash flows from operating activities R B E K2 B &R &
Cash generated from operations #8225 %% it £3 Bl 4 45,715 13,882
Interest received © U F] & 1,522 2,179
Income tax paid £ 1+ T 15 i (1,541) (5,636)
Net cash generated from operating activities £8# 3% % i 15 3 & 3§ 40 45,696 10,425
Net cash used in investing activities #¢ & 1% B it F 3 & 5 % (4,529) (9,154)
Net cash used in financing activities fll & 15 B it JH Bl & 15 41 (14,676) (21,978)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
WERBRESMEHK M, (WA ) & H 26,491 (20,707)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year
A 2 Ba kB e FEEH 143,290 164,076
Exchange differences on cash and cash equivalents
Bl kBl a%EEE 2 ML (13,139) (8,430)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year
WAERZ B kB EFEEAR 156,642 134,939
DEFERRED INCOME TAX 20 EWEIREBH
Deferred income tax assets/(liabilities) are offset when there B E A AR BT AT ORE R -
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets 15 B A Bl T G A B B AR TR A fE R Y
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income H B GE A5 B0 i ] — B RS RS R B Gk
taxes relate to the same fiscal authority. FRERBLEE (A& TLAHCE -
2015 2014
—F T4 R LR
HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000
BT T T
Deferred tax assets to be recovered after 12 months
T 1218 A% i [ 2 30 A B O 4,309 4,358
Deferred tax liabilities to be settled after 12 months
A 1210 A 4% 2 R E B A R (1,248) (1,665)
3,061 2,693
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DEFERRED INCOME TAX (CONTINUED) 20 EREEPTGE (4F)

The movements in deferred tax assets/(liabilities) during SRR 5 AE A ST A A 8 [R] — B T s
the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of 2GR B - IR TE R
balances within the same tax jurisdiction, are as follows: (BB 2&FmT :

Accelerated Decelerated

tax tax Estimated
amortisation  depreciation tax losses
T i fii st Provisions Total
50 I 4 58 BLE B 4R ] At
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

W T BT T T T T T T

At 1 January 2014
RZZF—ME—-A—H - 57 434 4,981 5472
(Charged)/credited to consolidated

income statement (Note 12)

WA DR (B /FEA (FEEL2) (1,665) 32 429 (1,230 (2,434)
Charged to other comprehensive income

T FC A A5 i 42 A0 B - - - (69) (69)
Exchange difference [ it. 2 4 - - - (276) (276)

At 31 December 2014 and 1 January 2015
Ro-F-NEFZA=+—H

kZF—HF—H—H (1,665) 89 863 3,406 2,693
(Charged)/credited to consolidated

income statement (Note 12)

WA BRI (JUBR) /A (M EE12) 417 - (863) 580 134
Charged to other comprehensive income

J HAt A5 B i A AR - - - 385 385
Exchange difference [ bi 2% 46 - - - (151) (151)

At 31 December 2015

REF-HEFZA=F—H (1,248) 89 - 4,220 3,061
At 31 December 2015, the Group has unused tax losses, MW Z—TET_H=+—H  A%EH
for which no deferred tax asset is recognised in the A AR Bl R TE s 48 4 T 96313,523,0000C
balance sheet, of approximately HK$313,523,000 (2014: (ZZF—PU4F « #%287,986,0007C) 1T A
HK$287,986,000) available to offset against future T A B R R SR es ] o b NI I e 5% A
taxable profits. Included in unused tax losses are losses of EHENEEAERNEREERIAE
approximately HK$51,925,000 (2014: HK$54,675,000) that oo RE BLUEE R PR IER —E L
will be expired in 1 to 9 years. Other tax losses can be carried AR B 2 1 A 51,925,0000T (-
forward indefinitely. F—DU4E - #s¥554,675,0000C) o HALBE

T i 45 JU) T PRV 25
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AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

AT Bt B 4 i R

2015 2014
—F T4 —ER
HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000
BT ik
Unlisted investments, at cost: JF F T & » A :
— equity securities (Notes (a) and (b)) B A3 % (Bt 5E(a) K (b)) 32,780 32,777
Listed investment I 1 #% &
— equity security (Note (c)) JEA#E 7 (K5 (c)) 2,848 3,882
Less: impairment J& © 8 (116) (116)
35,512 36,543
Notes: B 5E -
(a) The unlisted equity securities represent investments in (a) FFLTTRARTE SN AW - T AT

(b)

(©)

(d)

private entities incorporated in Taiwan, the British Virgin
Islands and Hong Kong.

The available-for-sale financial assets do not have quoted
market prices. The range of reasonable fair value estimates
measurements is significant and the probabilities of the
various estimates may not be reasonably assessed. The
available-for-sale financial assets are stated at cost less
impairment.

The listed equity security represents investment in an entity
listed in Japan.

Available-for-sale financial assets are denominated in the
following currencies:

(b)

(©

()

SRS RE BN 2 AR F 2
B

T A Y A NI T S AR -
S E Al w2 A BT RO 2 A
FTZ T RE M R e RE A B FT AN o ATt
A < A T AR T BRI AE B R

E WA SR AR AR LT Z
L Pais -

AT B A T A AT B A

2015 2014
“E—hAE SR A

HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000

W T BT T

HKS 5 ¥ 26,094 26,094
Japanese yen (“JPY”) H & ([ H &) 2,848 3,882
New Taiwan dollars (“NTD”) # & ¥ (T# & % 1) 6,570 6,567

35,512 36,543
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INVENTORIES 22 #8
2015 2014
—F T4 —ER
HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000
BT ik
Raw materials and consumables 58 ¥} & 114 ¥E i 210,253 342,094
Work in progress £ i 91,374 145,430
Finished goods SR 196,123 231,635
497,750 719,159

As at 31 December 2014 and 2015, no raw materials or
work in progress are carried at net realisable value, whereas
finished goods of approximately HK$5,427,000 (2014:
HK$13,290,000) are carried at net realisable value.

W E AR ZFE AT A
= —H o BRI RO s TE RS DL AT A
BLFR 5 0 - T 54 A5 40 W 55,427,000
J6 (& — AR 5 %513,290,00000) HI

DAAT 5 B I D1 I o
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 23 ® 5 B E WOHE Bk
2015 2014
B AR TR 4R
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
T ki aIn
Trade receivables — third parties
F o MEASCIR R — 5 = 1,370,445 1,342,682
Less: provision for impairment
I W A (17,801) (24,656)
1,352,644 1,318,026
Other receivables H:fth JE Ui i 2k 23,223 19,787
Total trade and other receivables
T B H At e i B 2K A AR 1,375,867 1,337,813

The Group allows a credit period ranging from 30 days
to 180 days to its trade customers. In addition, for certain
customers with long-established relationship, a longer credit

period may be granted.

KEEGTE D EFE N T30KE180K
ZAEEW o A e BT RIMBER
HTERPME » AEBAF RS TERERE

REH -
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 23
(CONTINUED)

The ageing analysis of trade receivables based on invoice

dates net of provision for impairment at the end of reporting

period is as follows:

¥ 5y B 3L At E WEOIR 3% (A7)

PATN 7 B2 oy BB SRR (410 B Bel (L 3 )
T i R L 8 5 AT 2 MR oy
Hr

2015 2014

ZE—hE R

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

W T T Hikiam i

0 to 30 days 030K 458,976 476,601
31 to 60 days 312 60K 344,683 403,153
61 to 90 days 61 290K 234,800 161,134
Over 90 days 90K A | 314,185 277,138
1,352,644 1,318,026

Trade receivables of HK$992,157,000 (2014:
HK$1,078,503,000) are neither past due nor impaired.
Among the past due trade receivables, HK$360,487,000
(2014: HK$239,523,000) were not considered to be
impaired. These relate to a number of independent
customers for whom there is no recent history of default.
Full provision for impairment of receivables has been
provided for the remaining balance of HK$17,801,000
(2014: HK$24,656,000). The ageing analysis of trade

receivables past due but not impaired is as follows:

5 M Wi B 3K 96992,157,0000T (%
— U4 5 %1,078,503,0000C) B o i
WIR AR EE o O 5 e R
75 1360,487,00000 (. — PU 4R @ i
239,523,00070) # 15 7 6T WM - 3% 5F
T B Y 4% T A I 0 R R Bk 2
SR B o Bt R 30 117,801,000
JC (F — U0 AF ¢ % 124,656,0000T) 4
TR R SR AR (A o s AR R
WE 2 B S BE IR R I 2 bl -

2015 2014
—E T4 TE Y
HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000
BT Sk e

Overdue by: #i i
0 to 30 days 0230K 163,411 104,339
31 to 60 days 31 260K 107,644 34,960
61 to 90 days 61 90K 28,303 21,474
Over 90 days 90K A | 61,129 78,750

360,487 239,523
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 23
(CONTINUED)

The movements in the provision for impairment of trade

receivables are as follows:

¥ 5 B 3L At ME WOIR 3% (A7

)

B 5 BEWUIR SO (B B < S B 4 T

2015 2014

—E A TR

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

T iy e

At 1 January #—H—H 24,656 17,390
Provision for impairment o (B 5 7,632 13,699
Write-back of provision for impairment I8 {E 1% ffi 2 % [l (8,226) (6,404)
Bad debts written off 35 i i 5l (6,261) (29)
At 31 December 1+ - H=+—H 17,801 24,656

The other classes within trade and other receivables do not

contain any impaired assets.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is
the fair value of each class of receivable mentioned above.

The Group does not hold any collateral as security.

Ty B H At B W R 2 HAtL R A £

5 AT AT 980 B

R B 2 e e s R B 2 Bl A
JE WS B V- o AN SR B A 1 A AT

A 415410 0 1 S B AR

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 24 fidEem TH
2015 2014
B HAE TR AR
Assets  Liabilities Assets Liabilities
g3 ffE R A
HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HKS$’ 000
BT wWTx ¥ TT ¥ T
As at 31 December &+~ H =1+—H
Forward foreign exchange contracts 7 i 71 B 75 4 - (23) 3 (816)
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DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Group had
outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts. The
notional principal amounts of these outstanding forward
exchange contracts at 31 December 2015 and 2014 are as

follows:

26

i mh TR (44)

BE TR R W
Sob o H A AT 2 A
BE 4 49 o 1 B — O AE R — A
FOAS TR R 2
S 40 2 4 K S BT

2015 2014

SR —E— 4

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

BT BT T

Sell USD for JPY & i 3% 0 3t H [H] - 9,256

Sell HK$ for JPY ¥ Hi #k 5 5 H [H] 2,783 -

Sell RMB for JPY  H A\ R ¥ 5 H [E] - 14,090
BANK BALANCES AND CASH 25 HUTHGBR KB E

2015 2014

—EF T4 — R4

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

T s M T

Short-term time deposits %5 1 & B 77 3K 185,313 99,721

Cash and cash equivalents B 4 f& 3 4 55 {8 16 H 215,896 282,063

401,209 381,784

As at 31 December 2015, bank balances and cash of
approximately HK$229,196,000 (2014: HK$241,368,000)

are denominated in RMB.

The conversion of the Group’s RMB denominated cash
and bank balances deposited with banks in Mainland China
into foreign currencies and the remittance of funds out of
Mainland China is subject to the rules and regulations of
foreign exchange control promulgated by the Government of
the PRC.

As at 31 December 2015, the weighted average effective
interest rate on time deposits and cash at banks was
approximately 2.71% (2014: 2.84%) per annum. These
deposits and cash at banks had an average maturity period of
185 days (2014: 183 days).

W oE—HEFT A=+ —H M7
45k T B4 A0 15229,196,00000 (&
— DU 4E © ¥k 241,368,00000) T7 AR
W HTE -

A B2 A7 WO H B A M R AT 2 HE N R
W (B B < B SRATT 4 8 S0 7 S R % B
B A ZE R S R B EOURF A 2
A1 6 1 AR R B KA1

RoE—REF A=+ —H > EWfF
S ERAT B4 2 INREST- 35 R A R 40
B2 718 (T F —UAE 1 2.84)F) o #% %
TERSARAT B T B 185 KB (=%
— PO 2 183K) -



26 SHARE CAPITAL 26 AR

2015 2014
—ZFhi —E— A
Number of Nominal Number of Nominal
shares shares value
B 43 ¥ H ligh ¢ i 8
HK$’ 000 HKS$’ 000
W T T
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
o 1 1 7 0. 1000 5 3 ik
Authorised: % & KA :
At 1 January and 31 December
B=H—Akt+ZH=+—H 1,000,000,000 100,000 1,000,000,000 100,000

Share capital

Jie A&
Number of shares HK$’ 000
Jie 43 8 H T
Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid:
AT R g
At 1 January 2014 and 31 December 2014
N E—E—A—H A F-ET A=+ —H 739,669,964 73,967
Share option scheme: M fE 51 #1 :
— Proceeds from share issued (Note 27)
BEAT IRy BT A 0H (B 5E27) 12,566,000 1,257
At 31 December 2015 A —F—f4FE+ - =+—H 752,235,964 75,224
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme was adopted pursuant
to a resolution passed on 30 May 2005 for the primary
purpose of providing incentives to directors and eligible
employees (the “Scheme”). Under the Scheme, the Board
of Directors of the Company may grant options to eligible
employees, including directors of the Company and its
subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in the Company.

Options may be exercised after one year of its grant date,
and options will vest (i) as to 25% (rounded down to the
nearest whole underlying share) on the first anniversary
of its date of grant, and (ii) as to the remainder on the
second anniversary of its grant date. The exercise price is
determined by the directors of the Company, and will not be
less than the higher of (i) the closing price of the Company’s
shares on the date of grant, (ii) the average closing price of
the shares for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the
Company’s share.

Movements in the number of share options outstanding
and their related weighted average exercise prices are as

follows:
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Jilh Jz HE it

ARFRBER - FEFTFERH =+ HE
R PR AR B LB EE AW
oy T R A R B AR (R
) o MAEFH - AN FEE G S
EMIE B (BLAE AL R B8 A R 2
) BT HEIRHE - DL R R o

G P ME P A 92 1 HOBR AR — AR AT A6 ()
AR H B E R E A H R B25% 2
TR (T 38 25 A 122 400 M R R 173 800
T () i 5% R 35 AR AR 1 i R
RN BEE o ATE T R AN R E R
EE > HRGDPINTI = F 2R
()3 B AR W R 2 T A 5 (i)
SR H R RS 2 H B 2 T
W T 5 B Gii) AR 2 A A 2 T -

1) oA AT 68 S S M S 1 B AR ) T - 2
(FREX -3k U

2015 2014
—E A SR
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number of exercise Number of
price share price share
4 S 85 options JnHE -y options
T WERMESE T B
HK$ HK$
At 1 January A —H —H 0.5613 16,444,000 0.5613 16,444,000
Exercised £ 17 fif 0.5602 (12,566,000) - -
Expired £ i i 0.5650  (3,878,000) - -
At 31 December A =~ H =+—H - - 0.5613 16,444,000

During the year ended 31 December 2015, 12,566,000
share options with a weighted exercise price of HK$0.5602
were exercised to subscribe 12,566,000 shares issued by
the Company. Among the total proceeds of HK$7,040,000,
HK$1,257,000 and HK$5,783,000 were attributable to the
Company’s share capital and share premium respectively.

BE E—-FET H=1T—HIL4E
JE TN > 12,566,000 il #7359 47 645 &
75 150.560270 2 WS A AT (1 DA R I
AN AT EEAT 212,566,000 B Ay - it
JiF 15 3 0 S8 %8 s 17,040,0007T T HEE
1,257,0007C K ik #5,783,0007C 43 Al 7 J&§
AN\ 2 A B By s o



28 OTHER RESERVES

28 H it fif

Available-
for-sale
financial
assets
Capital ~ Contributed revaluation Capital
redemption surplus reserve Share reserve
Share reserve  (Note (1)) Special  WHE  Translation option  (Note (ii))
premium Bk EHER reserve  SREE reserve reserve  JEARHfi Total
Beovid  WREE  (FERO)  BUEE WERE  ERRE  BRERE (6 it
HKS" 000 HKS' 000 HK$’ 000 HKS’ 000 HKS' 000 HKS" 000 HKS” 000 HKS" 000 HKS" 000
WHTE BT kBT WWTx  WWTx  k%Tx EMT B¥T BT
Balances at 31 December 2013
and 1 January 2014
REF-ZE+Z =40 R
ZHE-WE-A—-BZ&R 89,714 1,610 26,624 5,008 - 2,116 758 240 146,070
Fair value gains on available-for
sale financial assets
Ak B R A 2 AT - - - - 152 - - - 152
Currency translation differences
BHELER - - - - - (6981) - - (6,981)
Balance at 31 December 2014
REF-WEL I 2 - N2 & 89,714 1,610 26,624 5,008 152 15,135 758 240 139,241
Balances at 31 December 2014
and 1 January 2015
REF-MWEFZA=4—HR
SE-NE-A-BZER 89,714 1,610 26,624 5,008 152 15,135 758 240 139,41
Fair value loss on available-for
sale financial assets
Ak ESREE AT HER - - - - (515) - - - (515)
Issue of ordinary shares upon
exercise of share option (Note 27)
TP R R S5 (W 227) 6,369 - - - - - (586) - 5783
Currency translation differences
EWEREH - - - - - (20852) - - (20852)
Balance at 31 December 2015
REF-REL I 2N 96,083 1,610 26,624 5,008 (363) (5717) 172 240 123,657
Notes: [t 3
(i) Contributed surplus of the Company arose from a group (i) =L EESH S HERE

(i)

reorganisation on 26 June 1990. The balance represents the
difference between the nominal amount of the Company’s
shares issued under a scheme of arrangement and the
consolidated shareholders’ funds of Wong’s Kong King
Holdings Limited as at 26 June 1990 acquired by the
Company under the Scheme. Under the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the contributed surplus is
available for distribution to the shareholders.

The capital reserve arises from the changes in the Group’s
ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not result in a loss
of control.

EHREA AN VBB - %
IR A FRES B B
BEAT ) ThD (B B AR A R AR DR % 5
FR— WIVEAFEANH N H I
W TR B R A R A 2 4
B E S 2 225 - RIETFRE
—JUN—AEA TS (BT > '
BB R TR IR TR -

(i) ARG FA B G 2 A 2 A HERE A

) ORA BB LR &
MR 2 A Gt AR
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BANK BORROWINGS

29  RATHE &

2015 2014
E R e
HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000
W T T T
Trust receipts loans {5 #€ Y5 € 3K 35,542 15,497
Other bank borrowings, unsecured ] 45 H #fl #1 17 f £ 466,960 673,749
502,502 689,246
The bank borrowings are repayable within one year. AT REEEN —EREE -

The effective interest rates per annum of the bank
borrowings as at 31 December 2015 is 1.19% (2014:
1.44%).

As at 31 December 2015, trust receipt loans were secured by
inventories of HK$35,542,000 (2014: HK$15,497,000).

The Group’s bank borrowings are denominated in the

following currencies (amounts in original currency):

RoE—HAEFTH=Z1T—H - WTH
B EBEMEE1.19% (& — P4
1.44%) o

o —RAEFT A=+ —H > fFitilk
P8 68 5K DL 1635,542,0000C (=& — 10
A 15,497,0007T) & FE BRI -

A G B AR AT A5 LT 45 DL B W R E O
Wza®

2015 2014
“E—hAE TR AR

2000 > 000

T Tt

HKS 35,866 63,888
RMB A R - 2,314
JPY H 551,338 333,768
USD it 55,616 77,460




30 OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 30 BIEME RS

Minimum lease Present value of
payments minimum lease payments

B AL B AF J MUK Bk 3k LA

2015 2014 2015 2014

SE-GE CECWE CRCGE . CFNE
HK$’000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
BRTE  WWTE TR T

Amounts payable under finance leases

Fl AL A R

Within one year —4F [ 4 1,000 3 992
Between one to two years — F: 5 Jf{ 4 4 - 3 -
Between two to five years i 4F £ fL 4 16 - 12 -

24 1,000 18 992
Less: future finance charges ¥ : H 1% fil & % i (6) (3) - -
Present value of lease obligations il 1 /&4 2 #{H 18 992 18 992

Less: amount due for settlement within one year

disclosed under current liabilities

W R R Y BT B Y — AR A B A 2 R 3) (992)

Amount due for settlement after one year

JA — 4% B 4 2 3O 15 -
The Group’s obligations under finance leases are secured by 7 A 3] 2l L AR BE TG DA R i B
the lessor’s charge over the leased assets. R 2 B AR R -

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s finance lease PR E—HET A =+—H > &EH
obligations are denominated in Thailand Baht (“THB”). ZRVE ERE T RS ([HFek]) 5t

H o
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

IR P A AR I

2015 2014
RN T Y4
HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000
BT ok e
Retirement benefits obligations & /K 4 | 7&K #5
— Defined benefits plans & & #& F| 51 1 7,855 8,187

The Group operates defined benefit plans for qualifying
employees of its subsidiaries in Taiwan. The schemes are
administrated by independent trustees with their assets
held separately from those of the Group. Under the plans,
the employees are entitled to a lump sum benefit equal
to certain percentage of final salary on attainment of a
retirement age of 55. No other post-retirement benefits are

provided.

The most recent actuarial valuations of plan assets and the
present value of the defined benefit obligations were carried
out at 31 December 2015 by a Taiwan qualified actuary. The
present value of the defined benefit obligations, the related
current service cost and past service cost were measured

using the projected unit credit method.

Amounts recognised in the consolidated income statement in

respect of these defined benefits plans are as follows:

ARSI T A 6 I A T 2 B AR R R
BCSL FE R A FEE o 5% 45w i S A
AN O B G ] 2 E ) B
A o RIFZEard > RAAEEA—
B OREUAR 45 T 41 I 5 5 BB IR AR 1% IR B 4
Hraz K —Hn 2 mpl o ol MR 4L
B AR AR A -

w2 r AT SRS A B S R E AR A
RG22 BUE T h & a SRR RTR =
T-nET A=+ HET - RER
MRS 2 BUE ~ A B IR A5 A 1 A
TERRES B 35 5% 1 B T B BT AR

A I 0 T 2 e R A R e B AR R )
ZAaREEmE

2015 2014

S-Sl 1 e UK

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

W T T oo

Current service cost % # IR # WA 278 286
Interest cost Al B AL A 382 384
Interest income F B it A (245) (228)
Others HAth - @)
415 435
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS
(CONTINUED)
The charge for the year has been included in employee

benefit expenses.

The principal assumptions used for the purpose of the

actuarial valuations were as follows:

31

IR P A R I (A

AAETEA B LT O RE AR BRI B XA -

K E A E R R 2 AR T

2015 2014

“E R TR YA

Discount rate ffi B % 1.2% —1.7% 1.8%—2.3%
Turnover rate [1] ¥ % 0.0% —20.0% 0.0% —20.0%
Expected rate of salary increases T8 51 ¥ 4 3 = I B 3.5% —4.0% 3.5%—4.0%

The amount included in the consolidated balance sheet
arising from the Group’s obligations in respect of its defined

benefit retirement plans is as follows:

] A A [ gt JEL A R AR A A A T 3
A FEA G B R R ORI S

o

2015 2014
SR —F 4

Present value of funded defined benefit obligations
L3 A A FUR IS 2 BLE (22,280) (21,091)
Fair value of plan assets I #| & & 2 A F-{H 14,425 12,977
Others H At - (73)
Net defined benefit obligations 7 7 4 | 7K 4 V5 4 (7,855) (8,187)
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS
(CONTINUED)
Movements in the present value of the defined benefit

obligations in the current year were as follows:

31

3B A R A R AR ()

AR ERADRIE B 2 B INT

2015 2014
R R ZE AR
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
W T BT
Opening defined benefit obligations 4] #t 22 4 F & 4fF (21,091) (21,721)
Current service cost & ] R 7 i A% (278) (286)
Interest cost F B A (382) (384)
Remeasurements: 2 7l i :
— Loss from change in demographic assumptions
N BB B) 2 s 18 - 95
— (Loss)/gain from change in financial assumptions
RT3 /Pl 7 V€ (1,550) 140
— Experience adjustments £% 5 i B 161 (227)
Exchange differences on foreign plans 5% 7 il # 2 #0522 %8 860 1,292
Closing defined benefit obligations 4 Ji&& 5 7 4 | 7K 4 (22,280) (21,091)

Movements in the fair value of the plan assets in the current

year were as follows:

AR L FT RV E A E BT

2015 2014

R R4 —E -

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

T T

Opening fair value of plan assets 4 #) 71 & & & 2 A T-H 12,977 12,328

Interest income & Wt A 245 228

Remeasurements: 7 il & :
— (Loss)/returns on plan assets, excluding amounts included
in interest income

FHEEE 2 (1) Mo A AR B Z 35KIH (37 129
Exchange differences on foreign plans 5t Zh 5l # 2 #5248 (553) (776)

Contributions from the employer f 3= fit 3k 1,793 1,068

Closing fair value of plan assets 4 JiE 51 & & 7 2 A VA 14,425 12,977
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS 31 Bk MR )
(CONTINUED)
Plan assets comprise: FhH) AL
2015 2014
R R4 ZE AR
HKS$’ 000 % HK$’ 000 %
w0 % o %
Share investments in financial institutions
ST A < A T 1 4R 14,425 100 12,977 100

The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligations to changes

in the assumption is:

Impact on defined benefit obligation

3R E 1R R G 2 5 B
Change in Increase in Decrease in
assumption assumption assumption
1 5% 5 By B2 5% 4% m 1B 3¢ Ik A
Discount rate ffj 3 % 100 basis Decrease by Increase by
points HK$2,421,000 HK$2,856,000
10018 3 85 D Bl

The above sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an
assumption while holding all other assumptions constant.
In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some
of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the
sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant
actuarial assumptions, the same method (present value of the
defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit
credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been
applied when calculating the pension liability recognised

within the balance sheet.

Through its defined benefit pension plan, the Group is
exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which

are detailed below:

(a) Asset volatility
The plan liabilities are calculated using a discount
rate set with reference to corporate bond yields; if
plan assets underperform this yield, this will create a
deficit.

5 H2,421,0000C s 2,856,00070
gl AR o b T A — TR, Sk A o i i
AR R R A A R o EPR L
UG WA K AT REBEAE > WAl ek 2 5
B A] Ae ELAH B o EREE AL E AR RR I
S E RORE SR 2 U IR o R B
FHEAE E A AR N 2R IR G B AT
AR 2 75 i (i i i 35 30 R 2 7800 B0
G RIE R R 48RRI 2 BLE) -

7S T DR HL B A AR R 3B i 2
THJa\ B > R E R EFEIIANT

(a) ¥ B R
SEEETIE S S A FEEER
Rl 2 B BURGHE G E
RBURMIGEE B3 > Al -
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS
(CONTINUED)

(b)

()

(d)

Changes in bond yields

A decrease in corporate bond yields will increase plan
liabilities, although this will be partially offset by an
increase in the value of the plans’ bond holdings, if

any.

Inflation risk

The Group’s pension obligations are linked to
inflation, and higher inflation will lead to higher
liabilities. The majority of the plan’s assets are either
unaffected by or loosely correlated with inflation,
meaning that an increase in inflation will also increase
the deficit.

Life expectancy

The majority of the plans’ obligations are to provide
benefits for the life of the member, so increases in
life expectancy will result in an increase in the plans’

liabilities.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s retirement benefit

obligations of HK$7,855,000 are relatively insignificant

taking into account the Group’s cash and bank balances

and net current assets as at 31 December 2015 of
HK$401,209,000 and HK$948,521,000, respectively.

Expected contributions to retirement benefit plans for the
year ending 31 December 2016 are HK$1,016,000.

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit

obligation is 34 years.

31

IR P A R I (A

(b)

(c)

(d)

% % B RS B
8 T 2 0 T
BEE o T SN A 2
2 LM (R0 4040

38 iR B

AR [ 2 AR R R DR A
AR > FAEMKR o FHEIEE R
WA 2R B > B iR R R
B > A PR o [ B 0 s

PG
FEEBRIE I T By 2 BRAE R
PEARA W T i it A G
B AR R

ZREAALEMP —F - HETZH
=T —HZ B A RBITE B LIRS
Y U 50 Bl By s H5401,209,0000C B i
#948,521,0000C » * —F—HF T+ H
= H Z B IRAR RIS 7,855,000
UM E I A E LK -

WE L -ANFETF A= HILE
J§ 2 B PR AR A ) TE O R
1,016,000 7T

B E A MR 2 0 REF- 35 4 30 3 344



32 TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER PAYABLES 32 H 5 MEATHREK - WA S BR B i
7 R 3%

2015 2014

SE A -

HK$’ 000 HKS$’ 000

T ok e

Trade payables & %) I -] iz 3K 575,089 604,275

Bills payables JEf+f 22 % 14,308 20,810

589,397 625,085

Accruals and other payables FE 5| %% f] K H: fil FE {+f Bz 3¢ 281,547 254,285

870,944 879,370

The following is an ageing analysis of trade and bills
payables based on goods receipt dates at the end of reporting

period:

VAR 7% 52 5 B A MR e B B Ao 52 0 A i o5
WIR AL A W B RO R 2 MR 0T

2015 2014

- e TS —E -

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

T T T

0 to 30 days 030K 217,569 278,018
31 to 60 days 312 60K 210,621 227,641
61 to 90 days 61 90K 84,311 52,449
Over 90 days 90K DA I 76,896 66,977
589,397 625,085




33 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 33 &#iB4AoREEM
OF CASH FLOWS

(a)

Cash generated from operations: (a) REEBHMGHE
2015 2014
“E LA ZE AR
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
BT T T
Profit before income tax [ i 15 8 Aij %5 87,104 103,230
Adjustments for: 48§ % T 51 £ JH :
— Interest costs F] B 8,872 14,006
— Interest income A& Uit A (7,012) (11,936)
— Dividend income from available-for-sale financial assets
ERETRET S v J=V PN (509) (293)
— Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
E BN & R 61,619 56,889
— Amortisation of land use rights I i1 {#f FJ A 6 &5 361 360
— Write-back of impairment loss of building
T 2 (e 4R 458 [ (4,520) -
— Impairment loss of intangible assets #EJE & & 2 W (B &5 15 4,293 -
— Amortisation of intangible assets fEJE & £ Hf £ 4,314 4,314
— Allowance for/(write-back of) obsolescence of inventories
Wi A7 B B (I D) 530 (2,544)
— Gain on disposal of land and building H & 1 b J B 52 2 Ui %5 - (23,682)
— Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment 99 (177)
HEWE - RE M 2 kR (les)
— (Write-back of)/net provision for impairment loss on trade
and other receivables
54 5 Fe FoAth JE Wi R K 2 V(L s 8 (38 A 48 )43 A 0 A (594) 7,295
— (Write-back of)/provision for impairment loss on
amount due from a joint venture (44) 44
JRE i — [ B8 A W R 2 W (E s 1R A 1D 1
— Net fair value loss on derivative financial instruments
A7 A B TR 2 2P (B s 1R 13 4 (790) (76)
— Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [ %% 5 ) 7 5 % (7,221) (498)
Changes in working capital: % # & 4 5 ) : 146,502 146,932
— Decrease in inventories 17 & i > 220,879 15,853
— Increase in trade and other receivables (37,248) (111,139)
B4 G o At R Wi K 4
— (Increase)/decrease in deposits and prepayments
$ie & R AT FRIE () (7,624) 8,320
— Decrease in retirement benefit obligations #2 {5 i 2K ¥ ik 2> (1,758) (1,292)
— Decrease in trade, bills and other payables
B 5 ME AT R ~ A S 4% 2 FAth B ASF R i 0 (8,246) (55,573)
Cash generated from operations £% % 275 fir f5 81 4 312,505 3,101




33 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 33
OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
(b) In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds
from disposal of property, plant and equipment

comprise:

O Bl & O B R EE (AF)

(b) AEHEERERT > HEYE -
i 75 e Bt 2 B AR KA A

2015 2014

ZE A —F U4

HK$’000 HK$’ 000

#H T T

Net book amount i [ % A 1,347 23,032

Gain on disposal of land and building 8 1 J # 5 2 I 2 - 23,682
(Loss)/gain on disposal of other property, plant and equipment

W - WS BBz (k) e (99) 177

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
W~ RRSS B BT A A OR 1,248 46,891




34 COMMITMENTS 34 K
(a) Capital commitments (a) BERKWE
2015 2014
—E N4 TR YA
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
Tt BT T
Capital expenditure contracted for but not yet incurred:
ORI R EE 2 BAR X
Acquisition of plant and equipment ¥ & W5 K i 5 1,820 11,037
(b) Operating lease commitments (b) EMERWE

At the end of the reporting periods, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of

the rented premises which would fall due as follows:

R IIR > AEE P EYEZ
AT RO A B IR 2 R AR IR
A SCE A 2R IE R

2015 2014

S Sk K 2 - =

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

#H T T T

Within one year — 4F [A] 20,917 20,203
In the second to fifth years inclusive 5 — Z % 74 (B 155 B W 4F) 24,461 30,423
Over five years 1.4 D) I 9,299 14,441
54,677 65,067
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related parties refer to entities in which the Company has

the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party

or exercise significant influence over the other party in

making financial and operating decisions, or directors or

officers of the Company and its subsidiaries.

The Group is ultimately controlled by Mr. Senta Wong,

chairman of the board of directors.

(a) During the year, the Group entered into the following

transactions with its related parties:

35

BN L2 5

I 2o - 98 AR 2 ) B 4 D A A
— 7 B S 5 — 7 2 S R RS R R
REEEEN ZHHE > SHRA LA R
MEAF 2 EREFEHAE -

ASE R T B SR AR R

il o

(@) WAAHEIE - AR 80 UL B A L
AT TS5

For the year ended
31 December

Amount due from

related parties

BE+-H=1+—HI JE W BN £ 2
AR K JH
2015 2014 2015 2014
ZE A T -E ZE—RAE F U
HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000
Tt EWTT  WWToo W T
Ticketing and touring income (Notes i and iv)
SR KO A W as (B R M) 316 362 20 30
Ticketing and touring income (Notes ii and iv)
AW Rk Ui g (B R Biv) 265 212 - 22
Service fee income (Notes iii and iv)
s 2 i g (BAY Sk Miv) 118 118 - -
Rental expense (Notes i and iv)
g licda (B sk Kiv) 996 996 - -
Notes: [t 2t -
(i)  Related parties are Mr. Senta Wong, his close family i) B AT AR S~ T

(i1)

(iii)

(iv)

members and a company of which Mr. Senta Wong is
a director having control or significant influence over
that company.

Related parties are Mr. Edward Tsui and Mr. Hamed
Hassan El-Abd, Mr. Byron Ho and a company of
which Mr. Byron Ho is a director having control or
significant influence over that company.

Related party is Wesi Technology Limited, a joint
venture of the Group.

All of the transactions were carried out in the normal
course of the Group’s business and the terms as agreed
between the transacting parties.

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

RN B — [ A 42 b W B
KRB 2 EF 5T LMELEZ

INE

B £ iR EAR S - Hamed
Hassan El-AbdJt 2k ~ fi 48§ 88 5
A e — T 2 o M R S
N2 ERE R TBHR I E Z AT -

BN A — &8 A
F]Wesi Technology Limited °
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35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Key management remuneration
The remuneration of key management during the year

was as follows:

35

BN 122 5 (4

(b)

FHEMABZME

FEEEHANBRERZME T

2015 2014

—F A R —AE

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

W T BT T

Salaries, wages, commission and allowances 65,654 64,232
B L& - Ha KR

Post-employment benefits #2 /K4 7l 2,256 2,169

67,910 66,401
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BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVES
MOVEMENTS OF THE COMPANY

36 ArFZzEEAMERMEZS)

2015 2014
—F T4 —R LR
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
BT T
ASSETS #& #&
Non-current assets Jf i B & &
Investments in subsidiaries Fff & 2\ 7 % & 403,504 410,149
Current assets i B & FE
Prepayments TH f} 2K JH 227 227
Cash and cash equivalents ¥ 4 } 31 4 55 (H JH H 119 74
346 301
Total assets & /5 4 {H 403,850 410,450
EQUITY Ji% A
Capital and reserves attributable to owners of the Company
A oy ) HE i 5 A AN T AR T fak ARG
Share capital it 74 75,224 73,967
Reserves fifi 5 Note (a)Mff 5E(a) 326,610 334,495
401,834 408,462




36

BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVES
MOVEMENTS OF THE COMPANY
(CONTINUED)

36

Ao Wl 2 E R R R K Gk 52 B
(#)

2015 2014
—E A —E— Y
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
W ki nbin
LIABILITIES i f&
Current liabilities i B £ &
Accruals and other payables M T2 I B o Ath i+ iz 2K 2,016 1,988
Total equity and liabilities it HE & A % 44 %1 403,850 410,450
Net current liabilities i B £1 & &5 % (1,670) (1,687)
Total assets less current liabilities & &S 44 {f ¥k 7 Bh £ % 401,834 408,462

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the
Board of Directors on 30 March 2016 and was signed on its

behalf.

Senta Wong

Director

Byron Shu-Chan Ho

Director

ARFlZBEAMEBCOHR -F—NE=
HZ=+ H&EF A fEIr b DN #E S A
REE -

i 464 43¢
HH



36

BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVES

36 AN Wz E E AR K )

MOVEMENTS OF THE COMPANY (%)
(CONTINUED)
Note (a)  Reserves movements of the Company Bt 5 (a) N/ - L]
Capital Contributed Share
Share redemption surplus option Retained

premium reserve (Note (i) reserve earnings Total
Company Bt A% I Tl iR VR Jil B¢
Ay ] i Ay i £ it ff (B 5EG)) et REEAN gt

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000

Wi WETor W% Tor W T WWTIE W T
Balances at 31 December 2013

and 1 January 2014
e S £ R el s 89,714 1,610 77,253 758 170,624 339,959
Profit for the year 7% 4F: & i - - - - 9,329 9,329
2013 final dividend % — = KB L - - - - (14,793) (14,793)
Balances at 31 December 2014

and 1 January 2015
REFE-PET A=+ —H K&

ZE—HE-A—HZ &R 89,714 1,610 77,253 758 165,160 334,495
Profit for the year A<4F B i 1] - - - - 5,022 5,022
2014 final dividend — % —PU4F- A A B, - - - - (18,690) (18,690)
Share option exercised .17 {i i it HE 6,369 - - (586) - 5,783
Balance at 31 December 2015
REF-HET A= —HZHR 96,083 1,610 77,253 172 151,492 326,610
Note: Bt

(i) Contributed surplus of the Company arose from a group
reorganisation on 26 June 1990. The balance represents the
difference between the nominal amount of the Company’s

shares issued under a scheme of arrangement and the
consolidated shareholders’ funds of Wong’s Kong King
Holdings Limited as at 26 June 1990 acquired by the
Company under the scheme. Under the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the contributed surplus is
available for distribution to the shareholders.

() MR FEESNA - AHEEEL
B AR A BB o RLA RIS A
2 TR BE T80 2 B 2 B AT M0y T
BN T AR B 5% 5T B — SUILF AR R
H A5 H ol TR A A R
Al ARG & 2 - R A
B LN AEA TR (BT o EHL
Z ik m A IR T BROR



37 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 37 FEMBA B 15

Details of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2015 ACE—RE++A=+—H > FEH
are as follows: A RFERHNT -
Particular of
Place of issued share Attributable
Class of incorporation/ capital/paid up equity interest of
share capital establishment Place of registered capital the Group (%)
Name of company held 3Ll AV operation CH#iNA/ ASEMMER  Principal activities
Wl 4R resbAR R BEns  BAGEMEARH Bektse) FEEH
Direct subsidiary
HHMER
Asean Limited Ordinary British Virgin Hong Kong USDI 100 Investment holding
TR Islands Fik E RERR
ARERAHE
Brilliant Elite Hong Kong Limited Ordinary Hong Kong Hong Kong HKSI 100 Investment holding
FRLRERREARLA Lk Fit Fik T i3 -¢edl
Taiwan Kong King Co., Limited* Ordinary Taiwan Taiwan NTD362,888,940 6744 Investment holding and
AEEERABARA A Tk Al A # 5 1362.888.940C trading
BEERRE R
Wong’s Kong King Holdings Limited Ordinary Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$47,687,809 100 Investment holding
ERERERARL Bk Fi Ei 7,687,809 70 B
Indirect subsidiary
TR I 4
Dongguan Wong's Kong King Contributed PRC PRC HK$673,600,000 100 Manufacturing and selling
Electronics Co., Limited * capital Gl Gl 673,600,000 of electrical and
RETREBRETHRAT" i34 electronic products
RERHEERL
BTEM
RELLRERARA D Contributed PRC PRC HK$27,420,000 100 Manufacturing of film
capital Gil: HE 827,420,000 products
il REERER
Dongguan Nissin Plastic Products Contributed PRC PRC HKS$ 111,340,000 100 Manufacturing of plastic
Co., Ltd.* capital Gilz Gl TR 111,340,0000C products

RERFEBRRARL A i REEBEN



37

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

37 EEWE A F G (A

(CONTINUED)
Particular of
Place of issued share Attributable
Class of incorporation/ capital/paid up ~ equity interest of
share capital establishment Place of registered capital the Group (%)
Name of company held 3Ll AV operation CH#ITRA/ ASMIEN  Principal activities
WA e AR R BEWE WM AGHE Bl ()  EEEH
Indirect subsidiary (Continued)
kI 2 ] ()
Grace Year Enterprises Limited Ordinary Hong Kong PRC HKS2 100 Trading and distribution of
fiviE A AR TR Fif Gilet ik plastic products
BRGNS LA
Headway Holdings Limited* Ordinary Samoa Taiwan USD1,100,000 6744 Trading and investment
ERERARA R il B HE 1,100,000% 72 holding
B ki gtk
Hong Kong Taiwan Kong King Limited ~ Ordinary Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$26,210,000 6744 Trading and distribution of
FnEERARL HER Fib Fi #%26.210,0007C industrial products
ERREHTERR
Nissin Co., Limited Ordinary British Virgin PRC USD4,500,001 100 Investment holding and
TR Islands Gl 45000013 ¢ trading and distribution
ERUMAEE of plastic products
BElR - BBERES
R,
Speady Snatch Company Limited Ordinary Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$400,000,002 100 Investment holding
EHARAR Hiilk Fi Fib 140,000,002 BEHR
Taiwan WKK Distribution Co., Ltd.* Ordinary Taiwan Taiwan NTD1,000,000 100 Trading and distribution of
ARTREREHRHARAR TR hiE A # A 11,000,0007 industrial products
RAREHIXRER
WKK America (Holdings) Inc.! Ordinary United States United States USD45,000 100 Marketing
ik of America of America 45000£ ¢ misGHhE
£H £H



37

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

37 EEWE A F G (A

(CONTINUED)
Particular of
Place of issued share Attributable
Class of incorporation/ capital/paid up ~ equity interest of
share capital establishment Place of registered capital the Group (%)
Name of company held 3Ll AV operation CH#ITRA/ ASMIEN  Principal activities
WA e AR R BEWE WM AGHE RAtER (%) EEEH
Indirect subsidiary (Continued)
I ] ()
WKK Asia Pacific Limited Ordinary British Virgin Hong Kong USD1 100 Investment holding
TRERATEARA TR Islands Fif 1% REHER
EREMARE
WKK China Limited Ordinary Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$500,000 100 Trading, distribution and
TRIEEFEERA A Eis Hi #%500,0007C installation of turnkey
production facilities
Rh BHLTERE
AR
WKK Distribution Limited Ordinary Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 100 Investment holding
ERBREHHRAA Bk Fi Fi 41,000,000 BRER
WKK Electronic Equipment Limited Ordinary Hong Kong Hong Kong HKS2 100 Trading and distribution
IREREFRIFARLA Bk &k &k o B0 R
WKK Engineering Service Limited Ordinary Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$2,000 100 Provision of engineering
IREBESEBREHRAR T Ei Hi %9 00070 services
R TRABRE
WKK Japan Limited* Ordinary Japan Japan JPY50,000,000 100 Marketing
Ham S iR 50,000,000 B
WKK Distribution (Singapore) Pte Ltd* ~ Ordinary Singapore Singapore SGD1,800,000 100 Trading and distribution in
TR s sk Hi%1,800,0007C electronics components

and printed circuit boards

and other related products
ETEMREHIESR

REMAR &

B R
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PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

37 EEWE A E G (A

(CONTINUED)
Particular of
Place of issued share Attributable
Class of incorporation/ capital/paid up ~ equity interest of
share capital establishment Place of registered capital the Group (%)
Name of company held 3Ll AV operation CH#ITRA/ ASMIEN  Principal activities
WA e AR R BEWE WM AGHE RAtER (%) EEEH
Indirect subsidiary (Continued)
kI 2 ] ()
WKK PCB Trading Limited Ordinary Hong Kong Hong Kong HKS2 100 Trading and distribution
IRERERREAARAR Ek Fik Fik o B RAH
WKK Technology Limited Ordinary Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$400,500,000 100 Manufacturing and selling
TREEHEARA T TR Fif Fif 88400,500,0007C of electrical and electronic
products
HERHERRRETEN
WKK (Thailand) Limited* Ordinary Thailand Thailand Common shares 100 Trading and distribution
Tk R H THB2,450,000 of industrial products
Lk BAREHIEER
2450,000%
Preference shares
THB2,550,000
B
2.550,000% 5
WKK Travel Limited Ordinary Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$4,600,000 100 Travel ticketing
ERERIKEHRLA am Fik Fik i 4,600,000 7 R
3 Kings Holding Limited Ordinary Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$43,575,000 9426 Manufacturing, general
ZEEARAW TR Fif i 643,575,000 trading and hospital
management
e —REHRERER
ERIERPG (G FRAT" Contributed PRC PRC HK$24,000,000 100 Trading and distribution in
capital Gil: Gilil 824,000,000 printed circuit boards and
3 semi-conductors equipment

AR ER BT
R R
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PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

37 EEWE A F G (AT

(CONTINUED)
Particular of
Place of issued share Attributable
Class of incorporation/ capital/paid up ~ equity interest of
share capital establishment Place of registered capital the Group (%)
Name of company held iR/ operation C#RA/ ASEMBEN  Principal activities
A4 FERARR R BEWE WM A R EEEH
Indirect subsidiary (Continued)
HERBEAR (2
ERERPHRE (B ARAF  Contributed PRC PRC HKS$5,000,000 100 Trading and distribution in
capital HE Gl 845,000,000 printed cireuit boards and
i semi-conductors equipment
ARIERILLER
w5 R
TRRHL (M) AR A Contributed PRC PRC USD2,500,000 6744 Trading and distribution of
capital Gl Gl 2,500,000% industrial products
lid BARKHIERR
TRERES (LB FRAR: Contributed PRC PRC USD2,980,000 100 Trading and distribution in
capital g Gl 2,980,000 7 printed circuit boards and
3 semi-conductors equipment
EEEA I YEE L
R E 7 LA
TR (L) e BRE Contributed PRC PRC USD310,000 100 Provision of maintenance and
FRA T capital kst il 310,003 after sales services
id 4 RALAED R &R
RETRBRERARAA" Contributed PRC PRC USD2,050,000 100 Manufacturing, trading and
capital Gkt el 2,050,000 distribution of industrial
g products
B EARAMTEER
! Company registered as wholly-owned foreign enterprises 1 WM PREEETFMEAEEINESE
under PRC law. ZNE] e

# Companies not audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results

or assets of the Group.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities
subsisting at the end of the year or any time during the year.

# e oy #E S K A B wH DS TR 2
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